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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good afternoon, and

          3  welcome to today's hearing of the Committee on

          4  Transportation.

          5                 Today the agenda contains two items.

          6  The first is an oversight component examining the

          7  safety of New York City's livery drivers. The second

          8  is proposed Resolution 1844-A, by Council Member

          9  O'Donovan, relating to legalizing the right on red

         10  in Richmond County.

         11                 It saddens me immensely to have to

         12  convene this Committee for the purpose of having to

         13  re-examine how best to ensure the safety of our

         14  City's livery drivers, however, due to the recent

         15  tragedy in which two livery drivers were killed over

         16  the last several days, one during a robbery attempt,

         17  and the other during an apparent argument with other

         18  road users, we have no choice but to step forward

         19  and ask ourselves how can we best protect these

         20  drivers who are simply trying to do their job.

         21                 During 1999 and early 2000,

         22  approximately two dozen livery cab drivers were

         23  killed. In response, the Mayor, the City Council,

         24  TLC, the Police Department, held various meetings,

         25  and we held hearings here and worked with the TLC to
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          2  make sure that every livery vehicle be equipped with

          3  either bullet-resistant partitions or digital

          4  surveillance cameras. In fact, together with the

          5  Mayor, we contributed $5 million to make sure that

          6  that equipment was properly installed.

          7                 These safe guards and deterrences had

          8  an immediate impact. Up until the last few days,

          9  almost a full year had gone by without a single

         10  death of any on-duty livery driver. We want to

         11  ensure that any safeguard we propose to mandate will

         12  be reliable and effective.

         13                 To hastily call for imposition of

         14  such tracking technologies and premature, the last

         15  thing we want to do is require the imposition of an

         16  expensive tracking system in the City's 40,000

         17  livery vehicles only to learn that they do not work.

         18                 There are all kinds of

         19  recommendations out there, all kinds of ideas, of

         20  course we should listen, but before we mandate them,

         21  we have to make sure to see that they are going to

         22  work, and also look at the past success rate and

         23  records that we have so far. One year without any

         24  killing, one year without any violence crimes

         25  perpetrated against these drivers is something to
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          2  talk about and something really to brag about, and I

          3  would hope that we take a hard look at that and see

          4  what we have to do to make it even safer and how we

          5  move forward.

          6                 Also, I think we have to keep in mind

          7  of the surroundings and the circumstances around the

          8  last two incidents or three incidents now, in one

          9  particular case had the driver kept his partition

         10  closed, I think he would be here today and would

         11  have been saved. To have a partition and then not to

         12  have it closed, obviously, you know, it is like

         13  having a lock on the house and not locking your

         14  doors or not protecting yourself in any way.

         15                 My heart and my sympathy goes out to

         16  the family, absolutely. We don't want anyone killed

         17  and anyone hurt, because we take this as one of our

         18  own that is being hurt and that is being killed.

         19                 Today's hearing is meant as a forum

         20  to view how to look forward to what we can do to

         21  make it safer for us, and what we should do, what is

         22  mandated already, to review that and to see what we

         23  can do to move forward, if there is an idea to

         24  change something, or any recommendations anyone may

         25  have to add to the conversation and add to the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  agenda to make it safer.

          3                 The second item on the agenda, which

          4  is 1844-A, which is a resolution calling on the

          5  State to allow for a pilot program for the right for

          6  motorists to turn on right in Richmond County. I

          7  think it is something we should look at and we

          8  should examine and consider, particularly because

          9  the traffic conditions in Staten Island, and the

         10  difficulty the motorists are facing and pedestrians

         11  are facing, it is time that they take a hard look at

         12  that. And I know it is toward the second half of

         13  this hearing, Council Member O'Donovan, with

         14  witnesses and people from Staten Island, will come

         15  to testify.

         16                 Right now I would like to welcome the

         17  Commissioner, and thank her for responding so

         18  quickly, because we spoke about this yesterday, and

         19  I know you cleared your calendar and you got your

         20  staff together and everybody to work, you know, to

         21  move forward on this.

         22                 But I think it is important because

         23  we have been working closely on this issue, and it

         24  is important to know that we are concerned as well

         25  as you are about safety and we will do everything we
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          2  can.

          3                 What we need to happen is everybody

          4  has to cooperate with us and not have any other

          5  ulterior motives where you would say other reasoning

          6  for why promoting certain programs when we have

          7  already a program in place that has been successful.

          8                 So, without further ado, I ask you to

          9  please begin your testimony, or anything you have to

         10  say, if not, we will have some questions for you,

         11  and identify who is here with you.

         12                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: (Not

         13  identified) Actually, Councilman, as we discussed

         14  yesterday I did not come with prepared testimony. I

         15  am assuming that the Council Members know exactly

         16  what questions they want to ask and hopefully we are

         17  prepared to answer your questions.

         18                 So, we are here to answer your

         19  questions --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I appreciate that.

         21  Let me start with some numbers that we have, because

         22  it has been reported that summonses for illegal

         23  street hails have gone down instead of up, and I

         24  have some numbers here before me and I would like

         25  you to confirm that.
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          2                 In FY 1998 there were 672 summonses

          3  issued, 1999 633 illegal street hails, summonses,

          4  2,481 summonses, in 2001, to date, 715. To me that

          5  shows us an 80 percent rise, and you anticipate that

          6  you will probably be giving like over 900 summonses;

          7  (a) is that true? And (b) maybe you should explain

          8  to us why is it important to curtail street hails?

          9  How does that relate to the safety factor of the

         10  industry?

         11                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

         12  first of all, your numbers are correct, and the year

         13  prior to that were the numbers were lower. TLC

         14  prides itself, and we really feel, it is sort of

         15  along the broken windows theory, of working very

         16  closely with the community, so, therefore, we

         17  vigorously pursued and will continue to pursue

         18  quality of life issues. From every person from a

         19  soccer mom to a City Council member or United States

         20  Senator that brought a particular issue to the table

         21  in their neighborhood, I can say with all confidence

         22  we responded to every single one of them.

         23                 And you are right, we did bring the

         24  numbers up dramatically in summonses this past year,

         25  and just working the pure numbers we will go from
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          2  700 to at least 900 and some, as far as summonses.

          3                 This is something that obviously we

          4  have had the ability to work very closely with the

          5  City Council on. This is something that we take

          6  very, very seriously, and a number that will never

          7  reflect anywhere is the effect that the TLC has by

          8  responding to every, every, I can say here with

          9  absolute confidence, every single neighborhood

         10  quality of life complaint that comes in. We don't

         11  look at where it comes from, we simply respond to it

         12  and deal with it.

         13                 So, we believe that is a huge major

         14  prevention at that level.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Now, with regard to

         16  the street hails, some would say that it is part of

         17  a culture, part of a community that was expected,

         18  yellows don't go there anyhow, why shouldn't they

         19  accept street hails.

         20                 Maybe you could address (a) what does

         21  it do to transportation, is it something we should

         22  think about? And why is it problematic, street

         23  hails; and what is the safety issue involved with

         24  street hails?

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            10

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  the safety issues are clearly enormous. Yellow

          3  medallions by virtue of whom they are, their color

          4  of their cab is bright canary yellow, it doesn't

          5  blend into a neighborhood, whether it is in the

          6  business district of Manhattan, or whether it is in

          7  a very quiet neighborhood in Queens, they stand out,

          8  they are highly recognizable, people notice them.

          9                 If you were a criminal and you were

         10  bent upon committing a crime, would you do that with

         11  a yellow medallion where everyone is going to see

         12  you? Or would you more likely go into a neighborhood

         13  livery with just another car that blends in to every

         14  other car in the neighborhood?

         15                 So, I think that is a major component

         16  of it. I also believe the training that the

         17  medallion drivers go through for a couple years, I

         18  mean for 80 hours, that is a part, the safety is a

         19  part of the training.

         20                 Also, a huge portion of that is the

         21  ability to communicate with the public, many of

         22  them, and as it should be, the neighborhood livery

         23  services, the Russian community will service the

         24  Russian community, the Dominican community will

         25  service the Dominican community. That is really the
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          2  way it should be.

          3                 And the number one safety factor for

          4  livery cars is the way that the law is structured

          5  today. If you work off that base, as you are

          6  required to do, you have a dispatcher on that line,

          7  the dispatcher, a live human being, will send you to

          8  that location, they will verify who is at that

          9  location, and that you have arrived at that location

         10  and then when you pick up the passenger to the next

         11  destination.

         12                 So, we believe it is an enormous

         13  safety factor that livery bases that work all over

         14  the City of New York, should be dispatched.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: How many bases are

         16  there, licensed bases, in the City of New York?

         17                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: My

         18  deputy tells me 643.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Six-hundred and

         20  forty-three. And then how many livery cars are out

         21  there?

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Approximately

         23  48,000 livery cars licensed currently by the TLC.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So, you have to say

         25  that between the 48,000, not all of them do belong
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          2  to a base station, obviously?

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: A lot

          4  of them the problem is they are affiliated with a

          5  base --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Right.

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: But

          8  then they go out and they do illegal street hails on

          9  the side.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Right.

         11                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

         12  one of the factors that is just undeniable here,

         13  which I haven't seen any place, is that is one of

         14  the largest growing industries in the City of New

         15  York, is the for-hire industry. The medallions are

         16  fixed numbers, as you know, Mr. Chairman, it is

         17  12,187 medallions. The FHV industry literally dwarfs

         18  the medallion industry. It is a growth industry, it

         19  is over 40 some thousand and still growing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Obviously, we have

         21  an industry out there that is called an almost

         22  underground industry. If they are not working off a

         23  base, obviously we are not going to know what they

         24  are making, there is no way of tracking them in the

         25  sense of what they are doing and what they are not
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          2  doing.

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

          4  that's absolutely correct. If you own a base and you

          5  dispatch your cars, then of course, you know what

          6  the income is going to be and how many your

          7  percentage, what you are supposed to be getting.

          8  What happens is they affiliate with a base to get

          9  their license, and then they simply go out and do

         10  street hails.

         11                 If one were to make that legal, and I

         12  think this is something we really have to consider,

         13  you make that legal, how would a legitimate livery

         14  base stay in business? You license with them and

         15  then they go out and they have no idea of tracking

         16  what your income is at all. So, it is really putting

         17  some serious operations, it could be potentially,

         18  that have been around in this City and serve a

         19  tremendous purpose in this City, could potentially

         20  put them out of business.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And the safety

         22  factors on that?

         23                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         24  don't understand the question.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The safety issue
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          2  with regard to those who work not off a base, what

          3  are they potentially doing to themselves on safety?

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: To me

          5  they are putting themselves in harm's way. You don't

          6  know who is going to get in that cab. You do know,

          7  if you operate from the base, you are going to have

          8  a call-back, you are going to have a name, you are

          9  going to have a number, you are going to have a

         10  destination. And out of the tragedies last year, I

         11  believe there were ten homicides, one really was --

         12  there were 11, one was totally unrelated to the

         13  livery, it just happened to be a livery driver, but

         14  nine out of ten of them were street hails. So, to me

         15  that speaks volumes in itself. The biggest, in a

         16  rate of priority of safety factors, what we know,

         17  and the medallion industry could clearly verify

         18  this, the number one safety factor for everyone is

         19  that partition. The partition is tried and true, it

         20  works.

         21                 Thank God, I think we have had one

         22  homicide in a medallion driver, and I am not sure

         23  that that was related to the fact that they were a

         24  medallion driver in several years, thank God. We

         25  know that works.
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          2                 The second is the camera, because

          3  that car is marked that there will be a photograph

          4  of you in the back seat of that car. So, if one is

          5  still hell bent on committing a crime, you will

          6  probably not get into a car that has a digital

          7  camera rolling, you will probably let that one go

          8  by. But God forbid, if you don't, rest assured you

          9  will be apprehended, the Police Department will

         10  catch you, and it has happened because we have your

         11  photograph, and then third to that, which they can

         12  have now, livery cars, taxis, are allowed to have

         13  the GPS system. That it ranks, at those three, the

         14  GPA system, as far as safety, is at the bottom of

         15  that list. Yes, you could notify someone you are in

         16  trouble, it takes a response time to get there. The

         17  others -- and they do an excellent job in

         18  responding, but it still takes time.

         19                 The other two are obvious, they are

         20  preventive and we know they work, and with FHVs, the

         21  single biggest safety factor you can have is to stay

         22  on that radio and stay in human touch with that

         23  dispatcher.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Now, going back to

         25  the tracking system, as opposed to the cameras and
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          2  the partitions, first of all, with the cameras,

          3  there is no way they can disengage that camera; is

          4  that right?

          5                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          6  That's right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I mean, if a guy

          8  comes with a gun and says, you know, you better

          9  disengage the camera; there is no way to do that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Even

         11  if he shoots the camera --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Right.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: If he

         14  rips the camera out, we have the processing hidden

         15  in the car, they will never find it. So, even if

         16  they do do that, their image is being captured.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So, in a sense it

         18  is probably better than even the partition, in a

         19  sense?

         20                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It's

         21  a deterrent. We happen to feel just because we have

         22  longer statistics that the partition is probably the

         23  best.

         24                 We download in conjunction with the

         25  Police Department --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Now --

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          4  just want to say this one thing, Councilman.

          5                 We literally see offenders trying to

          6  grab the camera, because they will spot it, or we

          7  will see them ducking. The bottom line is we have

          8  their picture and they have been apprehended.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: In the sense when

         10  someone works on a base, with a base --

         11                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: In a sense they

         13  almost have a communication device, because either

         14  they have a partition or the car or the camera, and

         15  then they could also radio or somehow some secret

         16  code, if they don't want to --

         17                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: They

         18  do have a radio.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: They have a radio,

         20  and obviously they don't want to radio, hey, we need

         21  help, I got some crazy guy who wants to kill.

         22                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         23  Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: But it must be a

         25  way for them, I am sure they have worked out a
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          2  system.

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: They

          4  have. They have a code that they know among

          5  themselves, and they also have cell phones. In the

          6  event of an emergency most of them have cell phones.

          7                 I just would like, because you

          8  mentioned it before, the City, about a year ago,

          9  paid, as you know, jointly paid together, over $5

         10  million for the cameras and the partitions to be

         11  installed, and I just would like to give you the

         12  numbers of how many were installed.

         13                 Go ahead, Joe.

         14                 JOE: (Unidentified) 15,543 vehicles

         15  made themselves available to the camera partition

         16  reimbursement program. Five-thousand six vehicles

         17  were equipped with the digital security cameras and

         18  10,536 vehicles were equipped with partitions, and

         19  the City reimbursed each claimant up to $325 toward

         20  the purchase and installation of that equipment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And to install the

         22  equipment, a partition, how much is it around?

         23                 JOE: It is about $275 on average to

         24  install it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And a camera?
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          2                 JOE: The camera costs about $600.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Oh.

          4                 And is there any upkeep on the

          5  cameras, maintenance or anything on the cameras?

          6                 COMMISSIONER Mc-GRATH-McKECHNIE: No,

          7  it is relatively safe -- I mean, it is relatively

          8  easy to maintain. And the amazing thing, you have

          9  the stats here I think in front of you, during that

         10  time frame how both robberies and homicides

         11  literally plummeted during the course of this last

         12  year.

         13                 Do you have the stats right in front

         14  of you?

         15                 JOE: It is an important stat.

         16  According to preliminary Police Department

         17  statistics, year to date, calendar year to date from

         18  January to April 15th, for-hire vehicle robberies

         19  are down 67 percent this year alone. That is on top

         20  of an additional 30 percent decrease last year,

         21  compared to the year before.

         22                 The livery industry hasn't been safer

         23  in terms of driver robberies in over ten years.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, I agree because

         25  we haven't heard anything for a year. I mean, that
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          2  was music to my ears.

          3                 I want to get to other colleagues who

          4  want to ask questions, but I know with regard to the

          5  GPS system, where there is someone just now, a

          6  former chief of our Police Department came to speak

          7  to me just before and did speak to a group of people

          8  that a radio program, a program that works, not GPS;

          9  are you familiar with that at all? And the

         10  difference between the GPS and the radio?

         11                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: We

         12  have very vague knowledge.

         13                 There is a study that was going to be

         14  done by the industry, and we have never seen the

         15  study, the industry has not made it available to us,

         16  in fact, if such a study was done. We are very, very

         17  familiar with the GPS. We happen to think the GPS is

         18  an excellent system, but we also know that there are

         19  dead spots in that system where you could call or

         20  push the button and no one would in fact get the

         21  signal. But that is really not the point, the point

         22  is we will select the number one priority based on

         23  experience and statistics, we know the safety

         24  factors are in fact the base, staying in touch with

         25  a live human being, the partition, and the camera,
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          2  and then behind that is the GPS. It is an excellent

          3  system, it is behind the other three.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand that.

          5  And that is why it is easy to immediately respond to

          6  something, and say that this is a program we should

          7  try when we have a success already with some other

          8  programs. But I wanted to make it clear, I am glad

          9  we stated that and we made it clear that, obviously,

         10  the cameras are working very well, as well as the

         11  partitions.

         12                 I am inclined to say, but, again,

         13  statistics will show which one is better, but a

         14  camera idea is fantastic, because it is just a

         15  deterrent, and it is things you want. Even a

         16  partition is not as much a turn of the camera, for

         17  some reason people are just afraid of cameras,

         18  because they will know who you are. With a partition

         19  you are not going to know who the person is. If he

         20  did end up doing the crime, you will never know who

         21  that is. With a camera you are going to know who

         22  that person is.

         23                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         24  agree with your statement. Number one, the car is

         25  marked.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Right.

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: So

          4  that is a deterrent in itself.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You are being

          6  photographed, smile.

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

          8  if you are horrible enough and foolish enough to go

          9  forward, you are going to be caught because we do

         10  have your picture and we do download them, no matter

         11  what you do to that camera, and the Police

         12  Department has apprehended the criminals.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We are going to go

         14  to my colleagues, and I would ask them to limit

         15  their questions, and if we need to do a second

         16  round, we will do it, because we have to get on to

         17  another issue in the Council that was originally

         18  slated for this meeting.

         19                 Council Member Eisland.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 Council Member Dear has gone over the

         23  electronic and technical methodologies that you have

         24  used and the comparisons, but I know that there was

         25  a major decrease in homicides when you has policemen
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          2  riding as decoy drivers; is that program still going

          3  on? And if so, how effective has it been?

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          5  really can't comment, you would have to ask the

          6  Police Department, but I believe that it is, but I

          7  prefer that the Police Department answer that

          8  question. But I believe it is, they are still in

          9  both medallions and FHVs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Is the Police

         11  Department here today?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We asked at the

         13  last minute. I asked yesterday if we could get both

         14  and they were able to kind enough get me the

         15  Commissioner of TLC, I think they will answer most

         16  of the questions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I understand.

         18                 Mr. Chairman, before my next

         19  question, can we get that answer? I think it is a

         20  key answer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I will ask the

         22  staff of the Mayor's -- the Mayor's liaison, I will

         23  ask if they could get that information to us. Thank

         24  you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: As

          4  sophisticated as the different methods that are

          5  being used now, though a partition isn't

          6  sophisticated and absolutely must be used, but as

          7  sophisticated as some of the other methods are, I

          8  don't think there is anything better, frankly, and I

          9  think that I would ask you to monitor closely with

         10  the Police Department so that you, yourself, can

         11  give us the answer in the future as to how many cops

         12  are still riding as decoy cops in the cars?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I would think

         14  instead of publicly say what is going on, I think if

         15  we could have the Police Department communicate to

         16  you directly --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: That's fine.

         18  I am not asking where and what routes, I understand

         19  the need for confidentiality on that, but I would

         20  still like to know the numbers.

         21                 The other important thing that I

         22  thought was a good deterrent, is there seems to be

         23  patterns particularly late at night or locations

         24  where the livery drivers have been attacked,

         25  particularly, obviously, in the outer boroughs, and
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          2  we have had those discussions before, I believe in

          3  this Committee, and, again, it goes back to I guess

          4  communication between your Department and the Police

          5  Department. But I understand that there were not

          6  only unmarked police cars driving in those areas,

          7  particularly at odd hours of the night, but also

          8  regular police cars were in those areas; is that

          9  still going on, do you know?

         10                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: All I

         11  can tell you is the -- robberies are down in the

         12  last year by 67 percent, so it certainly clearly

         13  indicates to me in that industry that the Police

         14  Department is just doing an outstanding job.

         15                 With all due respect, Councilwoman,

         16  the Police Department is very respectful of what we

         17  do, and we are very respectful of what they do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I am not

         19  suggesting that the Police Department isn't

         20  respectful of it --

         21                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         22  understand. It isn't doing the job.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: -- It isn't

         24  doing the job. I am just asking if they are still

         25  doing it in the heightened way they were doing it
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          2  before? Are you asking them to do it? And are you

          3  working closely with them, particularly in locations

          4  where they should be doing it?

          5                 JOE: Council member, the Police

          6  Department continues its anti-crime vigilance,

          7  especially as it pertains to livery enforcement, and

          8  the stats simply underscore that with the 67 percent

          9  decrease. That is a phenomenal decrease, the stats

         10  this year alone compounded with the prior decrease.

         11                 So, the answer to that question is,

         12  yes, that the Police Department is continuing in its

         13  vigilance on its anti-crime patrols in regards to

         14  livery.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: And have you

         16  in any way changed that surveillance? In other

         17  words, do you tinker with it to upgrade it, or to

         18  realize which locations may be better than others?

         19                 I am not disputing that 67 percent is

         20  a great reduction, nevertheless, one driver or two

         21  drivers, as we have just witnessed, killed are two

         22  too many, and there is always room for improvement.

         23                 It would seem to me that with

         24  changing weather patterns, changing traffic

         25  patterns, changing destinations with schools and
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          2  colleges, et cetera, that there needs to be a

          3  year-round monitoring of where those police should

          4  be.

          5                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: That

          6  is a Police Department issue and is clear to me by

          7  their fabulous results that they have that they do

          8  monitor that and they are mobile and they move all

          9  over the City of New York. It is not something that

         10  they necessarily tell us ahead of time of what they

         11  are going to do, but when you look at the

         12  demographics, they really speak for themselves.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I just ask it

         14  not only to be a police initiative, but a

         15  coordinated effort with the TLC.

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Fine.

         17  Thank you, Councilwoman, we will be happy to do

         18  that.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         21  Quinn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 You mentioned the GPS system.

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I am sure, as
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          2  you are aware, some members of the Council, myself,

          3  Council Member Carrion and others, have a piece of

          4  legislation which addresses the issue of GPS and

          5  other tracking systems, our bill isn't specific to

          6  GPS, it could be the radio system, whatever, the

          7  bill if passed would create a mandate for those in

          8  livery cabs.

          9                 Obviously the intent of that bill is

         10  not so much -- the intent of that bill is to

         11  increase safety.

         12                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And it

         14  certainly, as you said, is a good system, it seems

         15  to us and the others on the bill, like a reasonable

         16  and logical expansion of what has already gone on.

         17                 Now, that said, what we really want

         18  to do is increase safety. So, if there is an

         19  additional thing that we should be doing or adding

         20  onto the bill or amending the bill, I would love to

         21  discuss that further with you, as well as with

         22  others in the industry.

         23                 Now, that said, I totally understand

         24  your kind of one, two, three ranking. If you could

         25  just tell me a couple of things; how many livery
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          2  cabs are there all over? What percentage now has

          3  either a partition or a camera?

          4                 JOE: All livery vehicles licensed as

          5  tier 1 vehicles by the TLC must have either a

          6  partition or a camera.

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: One

          8  or the other.

          9                 JOE: If they don't and we find them,

         10  they will be summonsed accordingly.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Now, when you

         12  kind of, Commissioner, talk about, you know, the

         13  partitions, the camera and then a tracking system --

         14                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Is it your

         16  sense that one kind of gets you to a safety level

         17  that is satisfactory, or is it really the partition

         18  and the camera together that gets you to a sense? Do

         19  you understand my question?

         20                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Well,

         21  the law says the partition or another acceptable

         22  device.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         25  Obviously the partition has been around the longest.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

          4  the records really speak for themselves. They have

          5  been around the longest in the medallions. And thank

          6  God the medallion industry is on of the safest

          7  industries in the City of New York.

          8                 The camera is relatively new, so as

          9  the Chairman said, there is two sides to that, one,

         10  the car is marked so therefore it is a deterrent,

         11  that there is a photograph of you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

         14  then secondly, if you do commit the crime, we are

         15  going to be able to apprehend you. But I just

         16  believe through the years that the partition not

         17  only in the City of New York, but in many other

         18  cities, have been the most effective, and clearly

         19  for the FHVs it is the ability to be in immediate

         20  touch with a human being on the other end of that

         21  radio.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, should we

         23  then be considering an expansion of the partition

         24  program, since presently all of the cabs have either

         25  a partition or a camera?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          3  really sort of think that is unnecessary. I mean,

          4  the statistics verify that in fact it is working.

          5                 One of the issues that we had with

          6  it, we will be happy to sit down and talk to you

          7  because it was in our response and we will be happy

          8  to deal with you with that. We are very hesitant to

          9  mandate the GPS. Certainly you can have the GPS now,

         10  there is nothing preventing anyone from having the

         11  GPS, that is well known, it has been known within

         12  the industry for years. So, if they want to have it,

         13  they certainly can have it.

         14                 Two things that we mandate are the

         15  ones that we feel relate the quickest and most

         16  effectively to public safety and the safety of the

         17  drivers.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: With the

         19  unfortunate recent two murders that occurred, and

         20  although there have been a significant decrease,

         21  there have been other robberies and incidents, but

         22  specifically with the two murders that occurred

         23  recently, those cars had partitions or cameras or

         24  which?

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: The
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          2  first one had a partition. The partition was open.

          3  There again it appears it is still under an active

          4  investigation, it just happened over the weekend.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

          6                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: But

          7  the information we have, there was not a radio,

          8  there was not a trip sheet, there was not a dispatch

          9  record, so it certainly appears that the person

         10  appears, this investigation is still wide open, was

         11  taking three hails and not working off the radio.

         12                 With the second one, it appears as a

         13  form of road rage, it appears.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right. No, I

         15  understand.

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It is

         17  still under active investigation. There is some

         18  dispute of whether it was inside of the car or

         19  outside of the car. The report I have seen, the

         20  witnesses said it was outside of the car, and it

         21  was, in fact, a form of road rage, which means it

         22  could have been in any car having to do with really

         23  nothing, except the individuals were involved. It is

         24  still a horrible tragedy, they both are, and they

         25  are under investigation but that appears the way it
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          2  is. It appears that way now.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: As I understand

          4  it, the Police Department has conducted a study, I

          5  guess a study is the right word, about the GPS and

          6  tracking systems, that there was a pilot program

          7  that ended on September 15th, do you know what the

          8  results of that were?

          9                 I know staff of the Council spoke to

         10  the TLC and was referred to the PD, but we have been

         11  unable to get specific information on that effort by

         12  the Police Department.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         14  Councilwoman, we will be happy to tell you

         15  everything that we know --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great.

         17                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:-- My

         18  First Deputy worked close on this. I think this kind

         19  of a misinterpretation, including on our part, of

         20  this program was.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         22                 JOE: The Police Department, my

         23  understanding, simply participated in an assessment

         24  of the GPS system and its impact on the City's 911

         25  network, and that was the extent of their
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          2  participation in the program.

          3                 As the Commissioner said, GPS has

          4  already authorized for use in for-hire vehicles,

          5  should vehicle owners choose to use it. So, that was

          6  the extent of the PD's participation.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh, okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And I

          9  understand the vast majority of them, and there

         10  again, I would have to look at it again, in the

         11  response, I believe if not all of them were in fact

         12  triggered by mistake, and the PD responded and it

         13  was not an emergency, it is just that someone hit

         14  the switch.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The last

         16  question, and then I will let me colleague go, and

         17  maybe if there is a second round I will ask more; do

         18  any of the cars presently have GPS systems, do you

         19  know of? And how many?

         20                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: There

         21  are. I don't know the number off the top of my head

         22  because it is not a mandate, it is not a requirement

         23  that they notify us, maybe my first step --

         24                 JOE: At least the 40 cars that were

         25  in the pilot program, from my understanding, still
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          2  have them unless they were removed, and others who

          3  chose to use them didn't make that information

          4  available to us.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just would

          6  like to throw out the suggestions, something to

          7  think about is maybe it would be useful for the TLC

          8  to reach out to the industry and ask voluntarily, if

          9  you have a GPS system let us know and maybe we could

         10  do some tracking with the PD to see if there was a

         11  greater level of safety with those cars that happen

         12  to choose to have it, to just do a -- you know, a

         13  survey or a study, if you will, of those that have

         14  it, so we understand better the degree to which that

         15  might improve things.

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         17  Certainly we can do that. They would have to, if

         18  they would come forward and let us know, we would be

         19  happy to do that.

         20                 My First Deputy reminds me, though,

         21  that we did a similar study a few years ago where we

         22  went to the industry, and, well, you can fill in the

         23  gaps, but they clearly opted for the camera.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right. I am not

         25  saying this in lieu of --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          3  understand you want separately, and those who have

          4  it. Yes, we would be happy to do that.

          5                 JOE: You should be aware that several

          6  years ago we worked with the livery industry,

          7  specifically the Livery Owners Coalition and other

          8  representatives of the livery industry, to come up

          9  with an alternative safety device in addition to the

         10  partition. And that joint work resulted in the

         11  authorization of the security camera, the digital

         12  security camera, which was favored unanimously over

         13  GPS technology at the time.

         14                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: The

         15  technology has probably improved in the last couple

         16  of years, so we will be happy to look at it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. And

         18  i will do a second round, if there is one.

         19                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: If we could do a

         22  quick vote on proposed number 1844-A, for some

         23  members that have to go on to another meeting, with

         24  regards to asking the State to permit a pilot

         25  program for a right turn on red and to pass two
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          2  bills in Richmond County.

          3                 I will record it. Council Member

          4  Eisland.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I look

          6  forward to the experiment and vote aye.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

          8  Miller.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I hope to have

         10  the opportunity to use this particular opportunity,

         11  and I vote aye as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And Council Member

         13  Lopez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Council Member,

         15  I was ready to now vote on this because I thought we

         16  were going to the Legislature in Virginia. I didn't

         17  know that in Staten Island it was called Richmond

         18  County.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: It's a rich man's

         20  county.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But knowing now

         22  that Staten Island has a new name for me, I am

         23  voting yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, very good.

         25                 Believe it or not, Staten Island is
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          2  still part of the five boroughs of the City of New

          3  York, and I am glad they didn't secede from the

          4  union. I am proud to have them, they are good

          5  members. Many of my old former constituents live in

          6  Staten Island, so I feel like it is an extension,

          7  Staten Island to Brooklyn, many times. I know

          8  whatever I say I will get into trouble, Staten

          9  Island Advance tomorrow will say the Council Member

         10  called that an extension. You will get your chance

         11  afterwards, Council member, I know it is your bill,

         12  but we are still on this issue.

         13                 Before I get to Council Member Lopez'

         14  request, again, I think it is important to make it

         15  clear, at the present time there is a mandate to do

         16  some safety device and protect your livery car,

         17  right?

         18                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         19  Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So you have a

         21  choice of three, or any are there other than three

         22  ways to protect yourself?

         23                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: There

         24  is a choice of two, either the camera or the

         25  partition.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Was the GPS

          3  acceptable as a choice?

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No,

          5  it's an option. Certainly if they wanted to have

          6  that as an option they may do that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: It substitutes for

          8  the other two, but is --

          9                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No,

         10  no, it is not a substitute. It is an addition to.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So, it is just an

         12  option, but, again, to add something of safety,

         13  rather than a substitute --

         14                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         15  Certainly if you were driving and you felt that you

         16  would like to have your personal security in

         17  addition to either a camera or a partition, that is

         18  fine with us, you are allowed to have that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         20                 Council Member Lopez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Commissioner, I

         22  think that you are the best Commissioner that we

         23  have in the City.

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Oh,

         25  my gosh. Thank you so much.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And I don't

          3  compliment people too often.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Oh,

          5  gosh. Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I think you are

          7  a very professional woman, and I am very impressed

          8  with the work that you have done in the Taxi and

          9  Limousine Commission.

         10                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

         11  you. I deeply appreciate that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I think that I

         13  owe you that.

         14                 Now, I have two questions. The number

         15  one question is, I don't know why -- I hear Mr.

         16  Mateo making some statements on the news that the

         17  Commission has dropped their feet in the

         18  installation of the partitions and the cameras, and

         19  what I hear you saying in here is the opposite, that

         20  the installation of the cameras and the partitions

         21  has been going down, and whoever doesn't have it now

         22  is in trouble. Then I have a contradiction in here

         23  and I want a clarification.

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         25  think that Mr. Mateo is just incorrect. I mean, the
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          2  program worked very well. It was a very efficient

          3  program. You had an option to either get the

          4  partition or the camera. I don't know if you were

          5  here when we read the numbers, do you have the

          6  numbers there?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

          8  read the numbers but, I just want a clarification

          9  because when I hear it in my house, I was surprised

         10  to hear that some cars don't have that installed

         11  yet.

         12                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: The

         13  cars, generally speaking, that do not have them, are

         14  what they call the illegal gypsy taxis, meaning you

         15  don't know if that driver has a license, you don't

         16  know if that car has insurance, you don't know if

         17  the driver has passed their drug test because they

         18  haven't taken it, you don't know if they do have a

         19  license how many points on it, so they are

         20  completely outside the regulation and the law.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: All right.

         22                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: We

         23  seize about five to 600 of those cars a month.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then you are

         25  assuring us right here right now that every car and
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          2  every driver that is legal at this moment in the

          3  livery car industry have the installation of the

          4  camera or the partition or both, or whatever of the

          5  alternatives are there.

          6                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          7  understand, no.

          8                 JOE: We can't make that assurance,

          9  obviously, but we are required to have it. And we

         10  have issued a total of 1,271 summonses for violation

         11  of the partition camera requirement to licensed

         12  for-hire vehicle operators who did not have it at

         13  the time of the enforcement stop.  Now, the penalty

         14  is a $350 summons and suspension until compliance,

         15  and we do follow-up checks to ensure that those

         16  partitions or cameras are installed down the road.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then what would

         18  be the reason for somebody who is legal, let's take

         19  the perfect scenario, in order to have this

         20  installed, because when I hear Mr. Mateo speaking,

         21  he said that the reason why that had not happened

         22  for those, I assume he was talking about those

         23  cases, is because it is not a possibility for them

         24  to do and because the Department has dragged their

         25  feet, and I quote, in giving this process a green

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  light.

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          4  think what I heard Mr. Mateo saying is that we were

          5  dragging our feet with the GPS system, not the

          6  cameras and the partitions. In fact, the City and

          7  the City Council, the Giuliani Administration and

          8  the City Council in fact paid $5 million for the

          9  partition and the camera, and those who come into

         10  the business, there are plenty of cameras available,

         11  there are plenty of partitions available, so simply

         12  all one has to do is order, and it will be given an

         13  appropriate amount of time by the TLC.

         14                 I believe he was talking about the

         15  GPS system. What he wants us to do, as I understand

         16  it, you must understand, in all fairness to Mr.

         17  Mateo, to talk about a plan, he has been talking

         18  about a plan since last week. I have never seen the

         19  plan. If you have a serious plan that goes before

         20  the Taxi and Limousine Commission, or for that

         21  matter, the Transportation Committee, you would

         22  submit it to them.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, but in

         24  all honesty, Commissioner, I am very interested in

         25  that statement that he made for two reasons, and you
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          2  mentioned one: We allocated money here in the last

          3  budget --

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          5  Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: To make sure

          7  that those partitions and those cameras be in place.

          8                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          9  Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And my

         11  assumption is that all of this is in place already

         12  by everybody. Then when they are here making

         13  statements like that on the radio or the TV, I get

         14  concerned because I want to know what could be

         15  possible, what is the possibility of this not being

         16  moving and what is stopping it? If you are telling

         17  me that the cameras and the partition, there is no

         18  reason whatsoever that exists for a taxi livery

         19  driver out there who doesn't have this installed

         20  now, if you are telling me that I am going to take

         21  that into face value.

         22                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: That

         23  is absolutely what we are telling you, Councilwoman.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That there is

         25  no reason. And there is no waiting list, there is no
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          2  waiting line?

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Anyone who

          5  needs that to be installed can go, and, bingo, it is

          6  installed?

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          8  That's correct, within a couple of days of ordering,

          9  if there is a specific need for it, yes,

         10  fundamentally that is correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then if I get a

         12  call in my office of any livery car who is by the

         13  book, not somebody who is not by the book, but with

         14  all the requirements saying to me I have not been

         15  able to get it through, can I call you?

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Oh,

         17  absolutely. I will give you my direct line.

         18  Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay.

         20                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

         21  we would intercede immediately, but I really don't

         22  think that you are going to get that phone call.

         23                 I think when you may get the phone

         24  call is that the TLC has not mandated the GPS

         25  systems.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, I am

          3  separating that from these two items.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          5  know.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the second

          7  question, I introduced a piece of legislation, which

          8  I don't know if your Department is aware or not, but

          9  I am going to tell you now, it's a piece of

         10  legislation that, and I don't want people to

         11  misunderstand me, I recognize that fatalities are

         12  going to occur, no matter how good the Department is

         13  run, the Police Department, the Taxi and Limousine

         14  Department, it doesn't matter how many deterrents we

         15  put out there to stop criminals, we are going to

         16  have criminals trying to rob taxi drivers.

         17                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         18  Unfortunately.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then

         20  understanding that, and understanding that I have

         21  the total sensibility for that, I introduced a piece

         22  of legislation, in the eventuality that a person

         23  gets killed, there at least is something protecting

         24  their life to take care of the families when that

         25  person dies, and the families will receive a certain
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          2  amount of money to take care of that family. I want

          3  to know if you think that that piece of legislation

          4  is something that you will consider? I feel that it

          5  is something that we should do in this City for a

          6  couple of reasons.

          7                 I hear that many of the families that

          8  got killed, their husband, the next day they didn't

          9  have nothing to stand on, because the husband was

         10  the only person who provides for them, and many of

         11  them cannot qualify for no benefits whatsoever.

         12                 Then when I came with the idea of

         13  putting this particular piece of legislation, what

         14  is in my mind is to relieve the burden, number one,

         15  of the state of having to take care of families that

         16  we can; number two, that the industry should provide

         17  for the life of those people who are working in

         18  there. And number three, that those families we need

         19  to recognize that we have a responsibility with the

         20  children and the wives of those people. It is in

         21  that context that I introduced this piece of

         22  legislation, I want to know your opinion about it.

         23                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         24  haven't seen it. It is something that we would be

         25  happy to look at. For 17 years before I came to work
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          2  for the City I was the New York State Crime Victims

          3  Commissioner, and we were there when that page was

          4  empty, and a lot of the legislation, I am happy to

          5  say, was really done in those years.

          6                 So, my heart goes out to the victims,

          7  you are correct, and their families. It is not -- no

          8  matter what we do, you are correct, something is

          9  going to happen. There are people that are just

         10  going to commit crimes no matter what we do.

         11                 Now, I do know that the State has

         12  made it easier for the livery drivers to file claims

         13  with the New York State Crime Victims Board. The

         14  regrettable part of that is that if you are not a

         15  legal alien then you are disqualified, and one of

         16  the things that I don't understand is there was a

         17  state task force that was to issue a report that Mr.

         18  Mateo was working on with the State Workers Comp

         19  Board, because in fact Workers Comp should do a lot

         20  of that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I explored that

         22  possibility in my piece of legislation.

         23                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But I was

         25  advised by the Council not to proceed in that
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          2  direction. Then my piece of legislation is to

          3  protect them.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I mean, what I

          6  am calling for, we need to do something about the

          7  life of these people who get killed, if there is

          8  nothing we can do to stop it from happening in the

          9  context of after we put all of the protection

         10  possible, and I am counting that that is what we are

         11  doing, we must recognize that the families of these

         12  people should be provided with some assistance, and

         13  those people who are undocumented individuals

         14  contribute to this country, they work hard, they are

         15  paying taxes, the fact that they are undocumented

         16  doesn't mean that the person who was just killed

         17  cannot be protected after death, and that the

         18  families will at least be taken care of.

         19                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         20  couldn't agree with you more. You are absolutely

         21  right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am going to

         23  ask you to look at the piece of legislation I

         24  introduced, I beg you to do that, and if you think

         25  that it is something that is worth it, I would be
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          2  willing to change it, I would be willing to adjust

          3  it. I don't think that we should continue allowing

          4  one more person to be killed, and not have some

          5  protection for the family is left after that person.

          6                 And, please, I beg everybody who is

          7  listening to me not to think that I am not sensitive

          8  to the fact that we need to protect a life before it

          9  is taken away.

         10                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Oh, I

         11  think everyone understands that about you,

         12  Councilwoman. And, yes, we will be very happy to

         13  work with you on that legislation.

         14                 And I would just like to -- there is

         15  a group called Safe Horizons, it used to be Victim

         16  Services, and we have in fact put them -- they have

         17  been in touch with the latest two victims. It is not

         18  a large amount of money, and off the top of my head

         19  I don't remember if it is cash of 500 or 1,000, but

         20  your legal status does not come into play there.

         21                 So, if you have children to feed at

         22  night, and you are a widow or whatever, you do have

         23  money, immediate money, you can use actually the

         24  money for anything.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am aware of
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          2  that program.

          3                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Okay,

          4  good.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But still --

          6                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: It is

          7  a limited amount of money.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It is very

          9  limited, and it doesn't get enough to pay the rent

         10  for five months, until that family gets ready to be

         11  able to confront this reality.

         12                 And the truth is that one way or

         13  another, Commissioner, we, the City of New York,

         14  have to take care of that family eventually, one way

         15  or another.

         16                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         17  agree.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then why we

         19  cannot produce a piece of legislation that will

         20  ensure those drivers somehow. And I am not saying

         21  that my piece of legislation is the best and is the

         22  solution, I am only saying it is an idea. And if my

         23  idea is not perfect, help me to perfect it. Help me

         24  to move it forward and protect these families.

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:
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          2  Absolutely. We look forward to doing that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          4                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

          5  you, Councilwoman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

          7  Fiala.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chairman.

         10                 Welcome, Madam Chair, Commissioners.

         11  I don't think there is anybody in this room who

         12  doesn't recognize that these deaths are a great loss

         13  to the City of New York, a tragedy for the entire

         14  City, but I would say this, and I want to establish

         15  an understanding on my part, according to the New

         16  York Post, ten of the last 12 livery drivers whose

         17  lives were tragically taken from them, were victims

         18  of passengers that were picked up as street hails;

         19  is that accurate?

         20                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes,

         21  it is accurate.

         22                 The Post has -- we have 11, they have

         23  12. Our statistics show there were 11 and ten out of

         24  the 11 were in fact street hails, yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: So, we are all
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          2  in agreement then, that for-hire vehicles picking up

          3  street hails is potentially a very dangerous

          4  practice, and it is also an illegal one, I mean we

          5  haven't changed our minds on that.

          6                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

          7  Certainly in light of the last two recent tragedies,

          8  I don't know how anybody could change their mind on

          9  that. It is the law and it works. It is dangerous,

         10  you are putting the driver in harms way, and you are

         11  putting the passenger in harms way because you don't

         12  know who the driver is.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I would like to

         14  talk very quickly about the rebate program and this

         15  GPS system. GPS is not mandated, it is an add-on,

         16  and that I assume, thus, it is voluntary. There is

         17  no rebate program for GPS; is that accurate?

         18                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         19  That's correct. I mean, it is something if you would

         20  like to add on to your own protection, certainly you

         21  are allowed to do that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: My own opinion

         23  is, you take added precautions, the fact of the

         24  matter is you can reach a point where you create a

         25  level of comfort that that creates a false sense of
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          2  security. As you indicated, in order for the system

          3  to work, you have got to have the enforcement right

          4  behind you. I don't want people to think that this

          5  is the cure all to deal with this issue. It seems

          6  the cure all is to recognize that for-hires are

          7  violating the law, and it is in their best interest

          8  and the passenger's interest not to be picked up.

          9                 I close by asking this: You may or

         10  may not recall, I guess it was a year or two ago, we

         11  had a round of meetings with your deputies, fleet

         12  owners are not included in that rebate program, they

         13  were excluded from the rebate program; is there any

         14  effort underway as new fleet owners come on board or

         15  want to retrofit cars that they will receive

         16  rebates? Because it seems while this is a wonderful

         17  program in concept, there is a discriminatory

         18  element here, there is not a universality going on

         19  here? So, is there any effort underway to rectify

         20  that deficiency?

         21                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: In

         22  fact, as I recall what we said, and we do agree with

         23  you that, you know, the fleet could not receive the

         24  funds at the time, what we had said is any of the

         25  funds that remaining we would give to the fleets.
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          2  Regrettably that didn't happen, the funds are

          3  totally depleted for everyone. We went through the

          4  entire $5 million. So, there is no money left,

          5  unless someone would choose to --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: So, if there

          7  were City monies available, though, TLC would be

          8  amenable to including fleet owners into the mix now?

          9                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE:

         10  Absolutely. Of course we would, sir.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The last question,

         17  Council Member Linares.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Then we can move on

         20  because there are witnesses we want to get to.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chair.

         23                 Commissioner, I want to thank you for

         24  your leadership and your effort for enhancing safety

         25  in coordination with the police, and trying to help
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          2  save lives. We still have a long way to go because

          3  one life is too many, and clearly I just saw the

          4  relatives and family members of the latest tragedy

          5  that we have with the industry, which breaks my

          6  heart, and it is something that we really are under

          7  pain to see yet another life, even though we made an

          8  effort.

          9                 So, I believe as the line of

         10  questioning by my colleagues indicate, we cannot

         11  rest, to make sure that we have done our job simply

         12  by having every car have a camera or a partition and

         13  hope that that will in itself do it without a

         14  consistent, aggressive articulation and

         15  communication between the industry, and law

         16  enforcement, and one question that I have, which I

         17  find of great concern to me, that has to do with the

         18  understanding of collaboration with law enforcement,

         19  particularly the Police Department, and your agents,

         20  in approaching the industry of the drivers, in the

         21  hope of promoting safety to them, and at the same

         22  time, because we don't have a legal industry where

         23  there is a demand for pick-ups in communities of

         24  color and north of 96th Street, we also see an

         25  aggressive enforcement of the law, and there seems
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          2  to be a contradiction sometimes of enforcement is

          3  put in a bad position, on the one hand we expect

          4  them to be supportive and to be protected of the

          5  drivers and the industry, but on the other hand we

          6  expect them to enforce aggressively the loss, and

          7  that is really difficult when we have such a

          8  situation where the life of a driver, someone

          9  serving the community is at stake, and I find a

         10  contradiction that needs to be addressed there.

         11                 The other question that I have, so I

         12  would hope that you could speak to that, because I

         13  wouldn't want to be in the position of someone who

         14  is expected to work with the industry and help them

         15  and be protective of them and facilitate that

         16  protection, and at the same time I have expectation

         17  of me as a law enforcement officer who implement the

         18  laws in an aggressive way, even sometimes multiple

         19  summonses, to them, it is hard to reconcile that

         20  position.

         21                 I know that there was a pilot project

         22  that was initiated with 40 vehicles, with the

         23  technology devices, and I was just wondering if that

         24  was last summer, the summer of last year, that I

         25  understand, according to the document I read here,
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          2  that was implemented; where are the results? Where

          3  is the information of this pilot? And what have we

          4  learned that may merit consideration for us to yet

          5  see another implementation that wouldn't have safety

          6  for us to consider?

          7                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          8  will be happy to have my First Dep answer the

          9  question, but I think there was a misinterpretation

         10  clearly on my part, on the TLC's part, as well as

         11  other people involved in this. It really wasn't a

         12  pilot program. I will have my First Dep, because he

         13  worked very closely with it, tell you exactly what

         14  it was and how it worked.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: (Not

         16  identified). Council Member, first off, we already

         17  established that GPS units are authorized to be

         18  installed in cabs as an optional safety device at

         19  the choosing of the vehicle owner, short of a

         20  mandate.

         21                 As far as testing, two technologies

         22  that were available at the time, one was a radio

         23  frequency technology, the other one was based on

         24  global positioning satellite systems, we know that

         25  those two companies, those two private companies put
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          2  together a pilot project. The New York City Police

          3  Department participated in it. It is my

          4  understanding, just to gauge its impact on the 911

          5  system, and I have yet to see any official report,

          6  we have yet to see any official report on the

          7  results of those projects.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: But you and I

          9  know that prior to the partition being mandated and

         10  camera devices being mandated, it was optional, and

         11  it was not until we really took a serious approach

         12  to be protective of the drivers and the passengers

         13  that you had then universal implementation taking

         14  place.

         15                 So, I am curious to find out, first

         16  of all, you know, what the cost of this technology

         17  is, and what are the possibilities of looking yet

         18  for this as a third alternative that may be viable,

         19  if we have the data and we know the cost of it, so

         20  that if it saves one additional life, then I want to

         21  take a serious look, just as we did with the

         22  partitions and with the cameras, and that is where I

         23  was hoping that this effort will go.

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         25  think, Councilman, we are with you right down to the
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          2  last comment. Because you can have that now. We

          3  approved that a long time ago. You can have the GPS

          4  system. The difference is with the camera and the

          5  partition between the Giuliani Administration and

          6  the City Council, you came up with $5 million to pay

          7  for it. So, that is the difference, is if you

          8  mandate it, are you asking that the taxpayers of the

          9  City of New York pay for it, when in fact they have

         10  already paid for a partition and they have already

         11  paid for a camera, in our best judgment I have

         12  listed the priority of safety devices as they were.

         13  The partition is number one. The Chairman and I will

         14  sort of debate on number two as to the camera, but

         15  they are both terribly effective, and in the event

         16  and GPS would be a third, and at the bottom of that

         17  list, though a very effective piece of equipment,

         18  but it requires a response time. And we also know

         19  the GPS is from people that have them in their

         20  ordinary cars, definitely has dead zones. So that is

         21  something -- I am sure as technology improves,

         22  that's going to be improved.

         23                 It is not that the Taxi and Limousine

         24  doesn't approve of GPS. We do approve of GPS. It is

         25  a matter of do we want to force that upon the
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          2  drivers and owners of these cars? And in fact, the

          3  vast majority of the livery owners who have been in

          4  business in this City and work the neighborhoods for

          5  some 50, 60 years are vehemently, and I think you

          6  will hear testimony today, they are vehemently

          7  opposed to another legal mandate to be imposed on

          8  them either by the City Council or the TLC, because

          9  in fact they have the option to buy it now if they

         10  so choose.

         11                 They are saying don't mandate at TLC,

         12  we have enough expenses now. But I agree with you,

         13  one life, if that helped one life, no one wants to

         14  see one single life lost. I am just not convinced --

         15  I am convinced that if they had been on the radio

         16  and not done a street hail and been on the radio

         17  with a life human being, that might have given this

         18  poor gentleman his chance to stay alive, which he

         19  clearly deserved to stay alive.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Just for

         21  clarification, I was under the impression that the

         22  cost for partitions and cameras was by and large a

         23  cover by either the drivers or the bases, not

         24  necessarily by us; am I wrong?

         25                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: No.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Before you had the option, before last year you

          3  could -- you had to buy the partition on your own

          4  expense. Last year when we mandated it, that you had

          5  to have either the camera or the partition, the City

          6  generously came forward with $5 million to offset

          7  the cost.

          8                 Because before if you were an

          9  owner/operator, how you chose to drive your car we

         10  thought was your business, and if you chose not to

         11  have that partition, because some drivers don't like

         12  the partition, they want to be able to communicate

         13  back and forth with their passengers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: And

         16  clearly it is a barrier, and it is a safety barrier

         17  between you and the passenger. But then last year

         18  once we said you must have a barrier, whether it is

         19  a camera or a partition, then all of you

         20  collectively came up very generously with that $5

         21  million to help offset the cost.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: How about my

         23  first question, the issue of enforcement protecting

         24  the industry and the drivers and the passengers,

         25  reconciling that with enforcing the laws and the
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          2  fact that there is still New Yorkers, the majority

          3  of which feel that they have to hail a taxi where

          4  there are no yellows, that's a demand of service

          5  that New Yorkers need to have, and, yet, you know,

          6  when they do, then the livery industry that responds

          7  to that need, then gets penalized, you know, and

          8  there is a context here of, you know, you are trying

          9  to help and protect and safeguard the industry, at

         10  the same time you are in the position of enforcing

         11  it, when there is a demand of service of New

         12  Yorkers.

         13                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

         14  absolutely believe there is a demand, and I believe

         15  the neighborhood car services, and we will give you

         16  the total number, is more than ample, and certainly

         17  that number can be increased on any given day to

         18  cover that demand.

         19                 All you simply have to do, and this

         20  is protection for the driver, and very importantly,

         21  but also for the business man who owns that base. He

         22  has the right to know, he has expenses to pay, he

         23  has insurance, he may own the cars, they may be

         24  fleets, he has a right to know how many trips these

         25  drivers are taking so he can in fact get his share
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          2  to keep the base going.

          3                 So, we are saying, as it is the law,

          4  he expects, and I know officers are between a hard

          5  spot and a rock because they are human beings too,

          6  that is the law, we believe in the law, and they

          7  will continue to enforce it. One simply has, and I

          8  don't buy the argument in this day and age, because

          9  I have two eyes and I use them all the time, people

         10  do have telephones, I am not saying every single

         11  person has a telephone, but the vast majority of

         12  people have telephones, all you have to do is call

         13  that base and your security is insured and the

         14  driver's security is insured.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: With all due

         16  respect, and I will conclude with this, south of

         17  96th Street where yellows circulate, people have

         18  phones also.

         19                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: The

         21  circumstances of this City, the way it operates,

         22  people do have instances in which they have an

         23  alternative back to hail a taxi.

         24                 And all I am saying is that that

         25  flexibility and option needs to be made available,
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          2  which is not legally for other New Yorkers north of

          3  96th and in other boroughs. That is a challenge that

          4  we are going to have to face up to.

          5                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: I

          6  agree with you that it is a challenge. But I guess

          7  my position is for the TLC, and certainly I will not

          8  speak for other departments, but we have to be

          9  consistent, and we cannot reenact the horrible

         10  tragedy that this is, and as a mother and just as a

         11  human being, this is a horrible, horrible tragedy,

         12  but we need to hold a steady course. And I would

         13  agree with you that that is something that we need

         14  to look at, but let's not jump today and do put

         15  something into effect that three months from now may

         16  turn out to be exactly the opposite of what we

         17  should do.

         18                 Will we work with you to study the

         19  programs and look at the program? Of course we will,

         20  we have always been open, but we really have to make

         21  sure we are making the right steps.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Just before I get

          3  to it, Commissioner, I just want to -- I know that

          4  the family members of some victims and the latest

          5  victim are here, so on behalf of this City Council,

          6  I want to extend my sympathy and condolences to you

          7  and the family, and we hope that through this

          8  terrible tragedy we could learn how we could make it

          9  more secure for drivers, and what we can do to make

         10  it safer. That is why we had this hearing and that

         11  is why I called for this hearing and asked the

         12  Commissioner on a 24-hour notice to come here and to

         13  come forward and to let us know what has been done,

         14  what can be done, and what we will do to continue to

         15  make it safe.

         16                 So, to the families, let me assure

         17  you that the Council is concerned and we will do

         18  everything in its power to make it safe. There may

         19  be some differences what we call safe and some

         20  people may have some ideas, we are going to listen

         21  to all the ideas and then hopefully work closely

         22  with the TLC to implement some of them.

         23                 I can assure you, I can assure you

         24  that the two mandates, the mandates they have now

         25  requiring the partition, and requiring the cameras,
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          2  are something that has been effective, because we

          3  see that there has been a decrease in violence, but

          4  that doesn't answer you and your loved ones and your

          5  lost ones, and I understand, and that is why we are

          6  here, to continue to have that dialogue.  I give you

          7  this commitment that we don't have to always have

          8  public dialogues, we work very closely with the TLC,

          9  with the Administration and I promise Council Member

         10  Quinn and Council Member Linares that I will

         11  continue with the staff to meet and to discuss these

         12  issues and to reach out to the livery industry, to

         13  reach out also to an industry that is not

         14  represented here in a sense, to the many that work,

         15  I can't say illegally, because then we sanction

         16  illegal activity, but those who are operating in a

         17  different -- who are not part of an association, and

         18  see what we can do to help them be a part of the

         19  operation and also to make it safer for them,

         20  because safety is the number one concern that we

         21  have in this Council, and we have worked out this

         22  already now, and as long as I am Chairman for ten

         23  years, of this Committee, we have been dealing with

         24  this, and prior to me, Council Member Eisland, who

         25  was previously here, has worked on this. So I know

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that we are concerned and will continue to be

          3  concerned and we will continue fighting for safety

          4  utmost for all our drivers.

          5                 Just for one minute, I think it is

          6  appropriate at this present time, particularly the

          7  families are grieving, the families who are burying

          8  their loved ones, and I would like to ask for a

          9  moment of silence.

         10                 (Moment of Silence.)

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Commissioner, I

         12  want to thank you again for your honest testimony

         13  and for your willingness to continue to work with

         14  us, and I know that you can't stay, but if any of

         15  your members, staff could stay back just to hear

         16  some of the testimony, and we will work with you and

         17  will have continuous meetings because obviously

         18  issues were raised and we want to continue with it.

         19                 COMMISSIONER McGRATH-McKECHNIE: Thank

         20  you for having us, Councilman, Mr. Chairman, and I

         21  know that jointly and collectively we will go

         22  forward to resolve this problem to the very best of

         23  our ability.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.
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          2                 Okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Mr. Chair?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES:  If I may

          6  convey in Spanish the sense of what you expressed

          7  just now to the relatives that are here?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          9  much. Please do that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: (In Spanish.)

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Thanks, again, Commissioner, and

         14  members of your staff.

         15                 Okay, what we are going to do now, we

         16  have some witnesses which I am going to call upon,

         17  but, see, this Committee was called, the item was

         18  added onto the agenda at the last minute because of

         19  the urgency, and I wanted to make time available for

         20  the Commissioner, there is another item I have to

         21  get to, which I have to tend to for a few minutes,

         22  so be patient, those who are here.

         23                 I just want to ask Council Member

         24  O'Donovan, who is the sponsor of the resolution,

         25  that we just voted on before, if he would like to
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          2  make a statement.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman.

          5                 It might seem a little mundane, this

          6  resolution, when we are here listening to the

          7  tragedy that transpired with the livery industry,

          8  and, so, we certainly extend condolences from Staten

          9  Island, too.

         10                 Mr. Chairman, thank you. This is

         11  Resolution No. 1844-A, and what it does, Mr.

         12  Chairman, very quickly, it pertains to right on red

         13  in Staten Island, the Richmond County.

         14                 Richmond County, Mr. Chairman, is

         15  more appropriately compared to upstate cities like

         16  Syracuse and Rochester, where right on red is legal,

         17  than to the other four counties of New York State.

         18                 The statistics show that in 1999,

         19  there were only 320 accidents involving vehicles

         20  making this right on red, out of a total of 160,933

         21  accidents.

         22                 Mr. Chairman, also that safety, of

         23  course, is paramount, and right on red in Richmond

         24  County should be legalized but not without proper

         25  measures. While right on red should be the rule
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          2  throughout Richmond County, signs prohibiting such

          3  turning should be erected at intersections where

          4  such turning is judged to be dangerous.

          5                 So, a pilot program, Mr. Chairman,

          6  should be out there, and this proposed Resolution

          7  1844 calls for such a pilot program, and incidently,

          8  before I finish, the State Senate is currently

          9  considering S.1763 introduced by Senator Marchi, and

         10  the Assembly A.619 introduced by Assembly Vitaliano,

         11  which would effect such a change.

         12                 So, we call upon the City Council to

         13  issue this resolution calling upon the State, on

         14  behalf of the City, all of the Council Members, to

         15  look at a pilot program for right on red, and

         16  incidently we have correspondence from the Chamber

         17  of Commerce and from business people, requesting

         18  that this Council goes on record asking the state in

         19  this resolution to support a pilot program right on

         20  red.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         23  Fiala.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 I quickly echo the comments made by

          3  Council Member O'Donovan and commend him for his

          4  leadership on this issue, and for authoring the

          5  bill. I am proud to have signed on as a co-sponsor.

          6  I would urge that when the vote is tallied, that we

          7  make a unanimous vote, as this is an important

          8  measure.

          9                 Staten Island does not conform to the

         10  urban patterns of the rest of the City, we have

         11  unique challenges but they present us with unique

         12  opportunities and Council Member O'Donovan has

         13  identified one of those unique opportunities.

         14                 The Council speaking on this issue

         15  will lend its moral force and I would suspect would

         16  go a long way in encouraging the Assembly to pass

         17  the bill, as the Senate has already passed it, thus

         18  would do it again, and then we would have the law on

         19  the books.

         20                 So, I commend Councilman O'Donovan,

         21  and I thank you for taking up this measurement, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 I know we have one witness here, if
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          2  he can be quick, I will get him up here.

          3                 Michael McMahon. Where is Michael

          4  McMahon, is he here? Okay.

          5                 MR. McMAHON: Good afternoon, Mr.

          6  Chairman, and members of the Committee. My name is

          7  Michael McMahon, and I am here to urge you to pass

          8  the resolution before you calling for the State

          9  Legislature to permit right turns on red in Staten

         10  Island.

         11                 Mr. Chairman, let there be no

         12  misunderstanding or understatement of the dire need,

         13  the mere emergency condition that the traffic

         14  situation on Staten Island has become. Long snaking

         15  lines of traffic, gridlocks and road rage are part

         16  of our daily lives. We need help, and we need it

         17  now.

         18                 I ask you to consider this: The main

         19  roads and thoroughfares on Staten Island that exist

         20  today were not drawn as part of some modern day

         21  urban traffic plan. We do not have a grid system and

         22  no studies were ever performed to design our roads.

         23  If the truth be known, our major roads follow the

         24  original design of the Lenape Indian trails from

         25  over 500 years ago. Imagine that, a community of
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          2  450,000 people living and trying to move goods

          3  across roads that were designed by Indians.

          4                 After this fact, the information that

          5  most of Staten Island's roads were not built to

          6  their mapped width, thus the map says the road is 60

          7  or 80 feet wide, but in reality the majority of

          8  streets are built to widths of 40 or 50 feet. Layer

          9  on top of this the lack of mass transportation

         10  infrastructure, and the MTA's continued failure to

         11  provide an adequate number of buses, and we have an

         12  island choking on traffic.

         13                 We need other things but they cost a

         14  lot of money, and we can't ask you for that today.

         15                 We therefore urge you to adopt this

         16  plan and we are in support of Councilman O'Donovan's

         17  resolution. Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We will support it,

         19  just make sure that you support O'Donovan for

         20  Borough President. That's all.

         21                 MR. McMAHON: That's a deal.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         23                 We are turning now to the vote. We

         24  just want to finish the vote on this resolution.

         25                 Roll call.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Dear.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Freed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Pass.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Nelson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And the others, as

          9  I told you, voted.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Freed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes. And I

         12  would like to be on the bill.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote now

         14  stands at six in the affirmative, none in the

         15  negative and no abstentions, and it is still open.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, Artie.

         17  Grover, and whoever else you have.

         18                 Identify yourself for the record.

         19                 MR. GROVER: May name is Artie Grover,

         20  I am an officer of the Livery Owners Coalition, and

         21  the Staten Island Livery Association. I have with me

         22  Joe Stella and Lloyd Taylor, who are also members of

         23  the Livery Coalition.

         24                 I got the same call I guess that the

         25  Chairlady got, and that was about 12 hours ago to
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          2  put something together to speak to you today. Most

          3  of it was covered, and as strange as it may seem, we

          4  agree with the Chairwoman 100 percent and the way

          5  they are doing it.

          6                 We feel that the City has permitted

          7  pick-ups in the street for many years, and it

          8  shouldn't be. Your best way of stopping people from

          9  getting hurt, killed, robbed, is by prearrangement.

         10  There is a very large sector of the City that works

         11  strictly by prearrangement, and there is no reason

         12  why the entire City can't do the same thing.

         13                 Obviously when they gave the amount

         14  of people who were murdered, which one death like

         15  they say is one too many, we don't want to see

         16  anybody hurt, especially murdered.

         17                 There was one item that was left out

         18  as a safety feature in our vehicles, was a distress

         19  signal lights, that are a law that has to be on

         20  every livery vehicle. Now, when the police see these

         21  blinking they are supposed to stop these vehicles.

         22                 Another item that we have that we

         23  feel that the families of the people who have been

         24  hurt and murdered have alternatives either going to

         25  the Workmen's Comp or going to Social Security,
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          2  because I know there are death benefits that are

          3  involved there.

          4                 As far as having the places where car

          5  services would pick up on the streets, once you

          6  start that the entire City is going to be enveloped

          7  in that, and it would leave the people who really

          8  need the car services in the outer borough hanging

          9  on a limb because there is going to be nobody out

         10  there to get them, including in my borough in Staten

         11  Island.

         12                 Basically we are here to answer any

         13  questions that you people may have for us. As far as

         14  the tracking system is concerned, we can't see that

         15  either. We have so much protecting us now, a

         16  tracking system will only add, well, it could add to

         17  it, but it is not a necessity and we can't see

         18  having it. We take that position.

         19                 If anybody has any questions, or if

         20  anybody else would like to make any statement?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Identify yourself

         22  for the record.

         23                 MS. STELLER: My name is Joe Steller,

         24  I own a car service in Staten Island. The testimony

         25  that I have heard today and my own personal belief,
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          2  is that if the issue is safety, safety seems to be

          3  synonymous with prearrangement, and there just

          4  doesn't seem to be any substitute. You can put

          5  anything you want in the car, if you don't have

          6  prearrangement, you are in danger.

          7                 MR. TAYLOR: My name is Lloyd Taylor,

          8  I represent New York Livery Base Owners and Drivers

          9  --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I don't think it is

         11  on. Is it on?

         12                 MR. TAYLOR: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Speak into the

         14  microphone.

         15                 MR. TAYLOR: I represent New York

         16  Livery Base Owners and Drivers Association.

         17                 I would like to address one very

         18  specific issue, that is the issue of street hails.

         19                 The only justification I have heard

         20  so far are two.

         21                 One is that the current restriction

         22  of street hails to the other medallion industry

         23  segment creates inequality in the treatment between

         24  residents in Manhattan and those in the outer

         25  boroughs and those above 96th Street.
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          2                 The second justification is that

          3  prearranged calls from commuters to regular dispatch

          4  base stations, as obtains in the livery industry --

          5  in the livery industry segment, means that the all

          6  too poor masses in Washington Heights and East New

          7  York suffer disproportionately as a result of this

          8  inequality because they have no telephone lines.

          9                 The most egregious part of this

         10  proposal is that it is written up nowhere that

         11  anyone can read and review or study diligently to

         12  establish its merits.

         13                 It is also that its passionate

         14  proponents never exercise the responsibility to

         15  provide a cogent analysis, supported by data so that

         16  we call can consider it seriously. It needs to be

         17  set for all to hear that it is a slur on the

         18  intelligence of hard-working regulators, drivers,

         19  base owners and colleagues to commit our attention

         20  to study a proposal that is confined to media

         21  headlines and sound bites.

         22                 Operation Green Zone cannot be

         23  opposed as regulators are apt to do on the ground

         24  that the street hails are illegal and that they

         25  should remain so.
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          2                 That is tantamount to saying that the

          3  law is the law and that is it. Nothing could be more

          4  mindless than to argue on that basis, especially if

          5  it can be shown that the proposal to reform the

          6  for-hire vehicle rules by reintroducing street hails

          7  and return to the good old days of gypsy cars has

          8  any merit. But it is impossible to discern any merit

          9  in a proposal that is not written on paper and

         10  detailed in a proper fashion that friend and foe

         11  alike can agree, disagree or agree to disagree.

         12                 Talk of street hails, green zones

         13  proposes a sea change in the industry, and if you

         14  have any respect for the intelligence of the drivers

         15  and the base owners, proponents have a

         16  responsibility to show clearly how this will

         17  increase income to drivers, enhance road safety,

         18  affect traffic congestion, improve the availability

         19  and quality of safety without compromising driver

         20  safety, enforcement capacity and the wholesomeness

         21  of our environment.

         22                 We need a serious discussion on this

         23  issue, Mr. Chairman, not all talk.

         24                 There is a case to make for street

         25  hails that has merit. However, this is not my burden
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          2  today. We are against any loose, hare-brained

          3  proposal for street hails, because it will do

          4  drivers more harm than good. As proposed, the case

          5  against street hails rests on the following points:

          6                 It will undermine the basic structure

          7  of the industry by separating dispatch base stations

          8  from livery cabs, without replacing it with any

          9  workable scheme for prearranged pick-ups.

         10                 If this happens it will make

         11  regulation well nigh impossible and it will create a

         12  regulatory nightmare.

         13                 It will create enormous congestion in

         14  our neighborhoods and will increase public

         15  expenditure for traffic regulation, slow down the

         16  speed of transportation and impact negatively on

         17  productivity.

         18                 It will expose drivers, more to the

         19  risk of slayings and robberies and increase the

         20  frequency of slayings. It is noteworthy that over

         21  the last two years there has been an unusual

         22  coincidence between proposals for reform such as

         23  partitions and cameras and now OGZ, and the rise in

         24  violence against livery cab drivers.

         25                 It will increase the risk of
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          2  accidents as a function of an increase in curbside

          3  pick-ups.

          4                 A rise in the risk of accidents, Mr.

          5  Chairman, will lead to a reclassification of livery

          6  cabs as a relatively poor class of insurance risk,

          7  and trigger an increase in premiums. Annual

          8  insurance costs for livery cars are now

          9  approximately 30 percent of the cost of livery cab

         10  operations and it is rising rapidly.

         11                 This year alone we expect an enormous

         12  practice in the industry when 10 to 12,000 drivers

         13  are likely to receive insurance cancellations, and

         14  lose their deposit amounting to a total of $14

         15  million. This is going to be a major calamity while

         16  we indulge our fancies about reform proposals that

         17  are not seriously put. Street hails, as proposed,

         18  will lead to greater risks with no adequate

         19  compensation or the prospect of increased earnings

         20  from street hails.

         21                 This impact on income as a result of

         22  increased costs is coming at a point in time when

         23  partitions installed last year in vehicles reduced

         24  the income to drivers by restricting the

         25  opportunities for proms, wedding anniversaries and
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          2  special occasions. A top of the head estimate

          3  suggests a driver include 45 percent loss of income.

          4                 The GPS locator system is only one in

          5  another line of costs that drivers are expected to

          6  bear.

          7                 The result of all of these costs is

          8  that we are witnessing a slow but sure demise of the

          9  livery segment of the private commuter industry.

         10  More and more drivers are leaving the industry and

         11  are going elsewhere to earn their keep.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 MR. GROVER: I would like to make one

         14  other statement.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

         16                 MR. GROVER: My company does a large

         17  amount of Medicaid work, which are basically the

         18  poorer people in the City. For us to do this work we

         19  have to call them 20 minutes before we are picking

         20  them up, which obviously means they have a

         21  telephone, and this is the way prearrangement should

         22  work.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         25  much. Thank you.
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          2                 Louis Anemone.

          3                 Chief, first of all, I have never had

          4  an opportunity to address you, in your former

          5  capacity -- well, as a Chair, I don't think I ever

          6  had you before my Committee, but a Chief is always a

          7  Chief.

          8                 MR. ANEMONE: Thank you so much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And I want to

         10  express my thanks, because you have done a lot for

         11  the New York City Police Department, you came

         12  through the ranks, you worked very hard.

         13                 I remember you vividly here sitting

         14  as it was yesterday before the committee of a

         15  resolution after the end of a previous

         16  administration and the then Commissioner Kelly was

         17  introducing you as the new person in charge, and it

         18  came to certain types of events and, you know,

         19  everybody takes credit for all kinds of things --

         20                 MR. ANEMONE: That was the Riot Squad.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The Riot Squad, and

         22  what is interesting is a lot of the things that are

         23  happening in the Police Department today is as a

         24  result of the good efforts of the men and women in

         25  blue who used their expertise, bring it to their
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          2  bosses, and as a result a project comes to fruition

          3  and it was used and was done very well. And I must

          4  tell you, had that plan been used in a previous

          5  problem, we wouldn't have had a problem then, but I

          6  remember that is how you expressed it to the

          7  Council, and in your capacity then, I think you were

          8  an inspector then, or a deputy even inspector, and I

          9  know you came through the ranks and did a wonderful

         10  job for the Department and we are proud of you,

         11  COMPSTAT, and when I watch The Commish on Saturday

         12  nights --

         13                 MR. ANEMONE: The District.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The District,

         15  that's right, not The Commish, the District, I know

         16  that is all you, and other people can take credit,

         17  but I know it is all you. So, I just want to thank

         18  you again for a wonderful job, and I know you are

         19  here for a different capacity now.

         20                 MR. ANEMONE: Thank you. And I am

         21  Louis Anemone, I am the Former Chief of the New York

         22  City Police Department.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         24  Rodriguez wants to vote on this.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote now

          4  stands at seven in the affirmative, none in the

          5  negative and no abstentions.

          6                 MR. ANEMONE: I am here with my

          7  associate, Effy Isadark (phonetic), who is the CEO

          8  of Ituran New York Corporation. I am here in my new

          9  capacity as the CEO of Ituran USA, and with all due

         10  respect to the Commissioner of the TLC, I have to

         11  take exception, I know she very dramatically listed

         12  her choices of safety devices in order, but the

         13  United States Occupational Safety and Health

         14  Administration, in their report, issued in May of

         15  2000, we have a copy here available for all the

         16  Committee members, placed AVL, not GPS, AVL,

         17  Automatic Vehicle Location Devices, at the very top

         18  of their list of safety devices for those in the

         19  livery, taxi and the for-hire industry.

         20                 I agree with the OSHA in that

         21  particular regard by the way.

         22                 My background, again, in the NYPD, 34

         23  and a half years. You have indicated I started at

         24  the bottom, worked my way up to the top, but I spent

         25  two and a half years in the Taxi Squad of the Street
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          2  Crime Unit, as an officer, and, again, as a

          3  Lieutenant. I know the industry, I know what is

          4  going on out there, and I think they need additional

          5  safety, and I know that our company can provide

          6  that. Not, GPS, radio, not only tracking. We are

          7  giving them and we are giving the City and the

          8  Police Department the ability to know exactly where

          9  they are, without having to try to dial a cell phone

         10  while their hands are trembling or someone is

         11  threatening them with a gun or a knife.

         12                 By the simple push of a button, my

         13  associate is going to distribute copies I think to

         14  the Council members now, of that test last year. We

         15  proved we can do it in this City, with no technical

         16  problems. For 45 days last summer at the very

         17  height, at the very height of the robbery and

         18  homicide epidemic against livery drivers, we proved

         19  our system works in the City. In fact, we did have

         20  16 accidental alerts, and in every one of those

         21  cases the police were called immediately, a radio

         22  car was en route to the drivers involved.

         23                 We have got a history of seven years

         24  in this business, 130,000 people worldwide using

         25  this particular product, 10,000 taxi drivers in
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          2  Israel, and I am going to submit that that is even a

          3  tougher market with security concerns far

          4  outstripping anything that the City of New York has

          5  seen in this industry.

          6                 Again, we are used by local law

          7  enforcement, the product is actually used here by

          8  the police in the City, at the Port Authority, by

          9  federal law enforcement authority. I submit that if

         10  it is good enough for them, it is certainly good

         11  enough for the drivers in the City.

         12                 The Commissioner of the TLC indicates

         13  she has mandated, too, I want the same treatment

         14  here for this product. I think the drivers deserve

         15  it, or my company deserves that opportunity, to

         16  mandate this. If OSHA puts this particular device at

         17  the top of their list, why wouldn't the TLC? We have

         18  proved our abilities, we have gained TLC approval as

         19  an optional safety device. Now they have to go to

         20  the next step and I think Councilman Linares pointed

         21  out in your question.

         22                 We are radio, we are not GPS. When

         23  you talk security, Chairman, you talk radio. Anyone

         24  here ever drop a cell phone call? You want to be

         25  relying on a cell phone or a GPS system that has to
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          2  rely on transmitting that data by cell phone? I

          3  don't think so. I don't think this City is at that

          4  point where they can guarantee.

          5                 I can guarantee we are going to get

          6  that signal, I can guarantee we are going to call

          7  911, and I can guarantee that this police force, of

          8  the greatest City in this country, the greatest

          9  Police Department in this country, is going to

         10  deliver on that response.

         11                 We have the solution. We are not part

         12  of the problem. A silent emergency alarm in the car,

         13  silent emergency alarm that allows the police or the

         14  monitoring station or the base station to know

         15  exactly where the person is, when they need help

         16  before they feel threatened by the person in the

         17  back seat, before the gun is out, before the knife

         18  is brandished, why shouldn't they have that

         19  opportunity?

         20                 It's like the clothes with the fact

         21  that this City has a long tradition, a very long

         22  liberal tradition of providing for those who don't

         23  have and who can't have, and you indicated that last

         24  year with your vote, providing the $5 million for

         25  the partitions or the cameras.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 We ask you to reconsider and allow

          3  Ituran in the LifeTrak system, appropriately named,

          4  an opportunity, and I am ready to answer any

          5  questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

          7  Quinn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can you tell us

          9  a little bit about the cost, what you would see as

         10  the cost?

         11                 MR. ANEMONE: I am sure that we are

         12  going to be in the ball park of what I heard quoted

         13  before, between the cost of the partition and the

         14  cost of the cameras, we are going to be right in

         15  that area as well.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And is there a

         17  lot of ongoing maintenance, yearly maintenance, or

         18  whatever is necessary?

         19                 MR. ANEMONE: This is probably not the

         20  appropriate forum for us to discuss prices, but I

         21  will make this commitment to you --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I am not trying

         23  to get a deal or anything.

         24                 MR. ANEMONE: For my position as CEO,

         25  we will install and guarantee the product for the
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          2  life, as long as these drivers own their cars. There

          3  will be a one-deal price and that will be it for as

          4  long as these drivers own their cars.

          5                 By the way, the system is

          6  transferrable, it is available to the consumers

          7  today, out in the street, and it is transferrable

          8  from one vehicle to another. The price would include

          9  all of that, Councilwoman.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you have any

         11  data or sense of how much the safety of drivers

         12  increases when you add a tracking system into a

         13  vehicle, you know, in addition to a partition or a

         14  camera?

         15                 Because I just think it is important

         16  to mention that we keep talking about partitions and

         17  camera, but actually the cars have one or the other.

         18                 MR. ANEMONE: Exactly.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What is your

         20  sense from data or studies you have done about how

         21  much safer a driver is if there is a tracking system

         22  in addition to a camera or a partition?

         23                 MR. ANEMONE: My own experience in the

         24  field, and I think any of the drivers that are

         25  present here, any driver who has been victimized and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  has lived to tell the tale, will be able to tell

          3  anyone in this room that they knew it was going to

          4  happen before it happened.

          5                 The emergency alarm in this system

          6  allows them to hit it when they get that feeling.

          7  Let's get the cops there before he is dead, and we

          8  don't need Councilwoman Lopez' grant of money then

          9  to bury somebody. There is a way out here, there is

         10  a way to do something.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The fleet in

         12  Israel that has this system, what other safety

         13  mechanisms do they have in their cars? Do they have

         14  partitions? Do they have cameras? This is the --

         15                 MR. ANEMONE: I will let my associate

         16  Effy Isadark address that.

         17                 MR. ISADARK: The only system they are

         18  carrying is our system.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It is the only

         20  thing they have?

         21                 MR. ISADARK: It is the only system

         22  they have and it is mandated in Israel to carry the

         23  system, the government is participating with the

         24  charge of the system, everybody should carry it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And did that
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          2  mandate, did that come about because there was a

          3  crime spree which compelled the government of Israel

          4  to mandate these systems in the cab, in the livery

          5  vehicles, excuse me?

          6                 MR. ISADARK: You are aware of the

          7  political situation is Israel, you probably know

          8  that Palestinians can come into the Israel territory

          9  and take cabs to their areas. So, most of the time

         10  taxi drivers were taking passengers to their areas,

         11  they were injured, threatened, and this is what made

         12  the government mandate this.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And has there

         14  been any study to see whether there has been a

         15  decrease in violence against these drivers since the

         16  mandate?

         17                 MR. ANEMONE: I believe your booklet

         18  that was distributed has a testimonial from a

         19  retired Brigadier General of the Israeli army who

         20  was hired as a consultant in that regard, and it was

         21  very favorable.

         22                 MR. ISADARK: If I may add to that.

         23  Many lives, and we can provide with you official

         24  reports of the police in Israel that carry actually

         25  the system in their control room, and while
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          2  something is happening they actual visual, and they

          3  can see where is the vehicle and they react to that.

          4  We don't need even to call them to let them know

          5  that something happened, they get information

          6  directly to the control room and they dispatch their

          7  vehicles to help drivers and we have some official

          8  reports about it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         10  say one last thing, which is that the bill that I

         11  had mentioned that myself and Council Member Carrion

         12  and Linares and others had introduced, is open as it

         13  relates to what type of system it would be, you

         14  know, with this global positioning radio, we don't

         15  in the bill draw any conclusion about company or

         16  systems, just the concept of a tracking device.

         17                 MR. ANEMONE: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes, Council Member

         19  Freed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         21                 Yes, the one thing I didn't hear you

         22  address is how much do you think this system would

         23  cost?

         24                 MR. ANEMONE: I answered that I

         25  thought it would be in the range of what it was
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          2  paying now for either the partitions or those

          3  cameras or somewhere around that number.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Which is?

          5                 MR. ANEMONE: How many vehicles are we

          6  talking about, what are the types of services are

          7  they looking for? I don't know that this is the --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. I don't

          9  mean to totally pin you down, just a ballpark,

         10  because obviously the question we get very often is

         11  that cabs come back and say it is very expensive. We

         12  went through this with the partitions and then

         13  eventually we asked for it anyway.

         14                 MR. ANEMONE: I am sure that you could

         15  equip as many cabs with our devices as you did with

         16  that partitions and/or the cameras for the same

         17  amount of money.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

         19                 MR. ANEMONE: That ball park.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And is there an

         21  ongoing -- what is the operation fee?

         22                 MR. ANEMONE: No, I indicated that for

         23  as long as the driver owns that car there would be

         24  no additional fees.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.
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          2                 MR. ANEMONE: That would be it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The Commissioner I

          6  think made some indication that you had participated

          7  in some sort of study over the summer period with

          8  your particular system?

          9                 MR. ANEMONE: We equipped 20 livery

         10  cabs in the City of New York with our system, from

         11  August 1st, to September 15th, the handbook that we

         12  passed out has a proposal for doing the project and

         13  has our report of the results of the project. And

         14  that was provided to the Police Department.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And the Police

         16  Department, first of all, do the 20 cars still have

         17  the system, or just for that period of time?

         18                 MR. ANEMONE: That was a no cost and

         19  we are not monitoring their systems any longer,

         20  although the hardware is still installed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Now, did the Police

         22  Department do a report on that?

         23                 MR. ANEMONE: I never saw one,

         24  although they did ask to come out and submit to

         25  another test here in Manhattan. We never saw or
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          2  heard the results of that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So, obviously, you

          4  did a report on it but the Police Department itself

          5  did not say positive or negative or anything?

          6                 MR. ANEMONE: They indicated that they

          7  were very happily verbally, but I have never

          8  received anything in writing.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Was the TLC part of

         10  that study? Were they informed? Was the information

         11  shared with them at all?

         12                 MR. ANEMONE: I just gave Commissioner

         13  Giannetto a copy of that same report. I am not sure

         14  if he got it last year, I really couldn't say.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         16                 MR. ANEMONE: By the way, we received

         17  TLC approval after demonstrating our capabilities to

         18  them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The staff just

         20  asked me a good question.

         21                 One is, will the passengers or the

         22  potential criminals be aware the device is there?

         23                 MR. ANEMONE: No. Not unless we

         24  publicize it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: There is no
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          2  indication. And we wouldn't put any markings on the

          3  car that this is equipped with this kind of device.

          4                 MR. ANEMONE: Not unless they ask for

          5  it, or they determine that, you know, it should be.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And can they jam

          7  this device?

          8                 MR. ANEMONE: The device, very

          9  interestingly, was developed for the battlefield, to

         10  locate downed pilots, highly resistant to

         11  electromagnetic interference, so it works on the

         12  battlefield, it will work on this urban battlefield.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Do you know where

         14  else it is being used in a livery system?

         15                 MR. ANEMONE: In Israel, in San Paolo,

         16  in Ft. Lauderdale, Miami.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And Ft. Lauderdale

         18  and Miami, how long is it being used?

         19                 MR. ANEMONE: And Washington, D.C., I

         20  am sorry I neglected Washington, D.C. also.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: How long is it

         22  being used there?

         23                 MR. ANEMONE: During the last year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Are there any

         25  reports or any studies or anything as a result of
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          2  that?

          3                 MR. ANEMONE: In Washington, D.C.,

          4  again, we had to demonstrate our capabilities to the

          5  Commission that regulates the taxi and livery

          6  industry, and we received the approval to go ahead

          7  and install and sell and that is what we are doing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And are they

          9  mandated in those cities?

         10                 MR. ANEMONE: I am not sure if they

         11  are mandated.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Are the cars

         13  installing them?

         14                 MR. ANEMONE: I am sorry, we are one

         15  of the devices that is mandated in Washington, D.C.

         16  That is a recent change in the last month.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: What else is

         18  mandated there?

         19                 MR. ANEMONE: Partitions, I believe.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So there it is

         21  mandated. Not like here. Here it is not mandated as

         22  part of the mandate, it is just an additional

         23  security that is allowed, that you can put in, you

         24  just can't put in anything you want.

         25                 MR. ANEMONE: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Where in

          3  Washington, it is one of the alternatives of which

          4  systems they can use.

          5                 It would be helpful to us if you

          6  could get the data of, you know, whatever data, even

          7  if it is fairly recent, obviously it is a new

          8  program, to help us looking at this, should we

          9  request of the TLC to make this as one of the

         10  options?

         11                 MR. ANEMONE: I supplied the data from

         12  the New York City experiment in your booklet as

         13  well.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         15                 Now, and in the D.C. study, whatever

         16  they --

         17                 MR. ANEMONE: There was no study. It

         18  was a demonstration, a hearing --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And this is the

         20  cost to the individual, the City's are not paying

         21  it. The municipalities are not paying for this?

         22                 MR. ANEMONE: That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And none of the

         24  areas that you are working the municipalities are

         25  paying for it, are they?
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          2                 MR. ANEMONE: That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: All right, I don't

          4  think I have any further questions.

          5                 I want to thank you.

          6                 MR. ANEMONE: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Obviously this is

          8  something different.

          9                 In all fairness, I didn't realize

         10  this, they came forward now, Elic Ribacoff, who is

         11  from Security Track, are they here? Where are you?

         12  Okay.

         13                 Let me make it clear, we are not

         14  favoring one over another, only as a courtesy. You

         15  have to understand, a former Chief of the Department

         16  carries some weight.

         17                 Not weight in which system we are

         18  going to recommend or anything, let me make that

         19  clear, only as a courtesy.

         20                 Go ahead.

         21                 MR. RIBACOFF: Thank you very much.

         22                 On behalf of Security Track, which is

         23  my firm -- pardon me, I have a cold -- our firm

         24  Security Track, also participated in the pilot

         25  program from August to September. We also installed
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          2  20 units into 20 livery vehicles, and the results

          3  speak for themselves.

          4                 We only had a total of four false

          5  alarms, none of the false alarms in the GPS tracking

          6  system were caused by drivers, they were caused by

          7  technical malfunctions. A car wash operator had

          8  pushed a button, a radio repair operator had pushed

          9  a button.

         10                 The main advantage that you will find

         11  with GPS systems over RF systems is the method in

         12  which they communicate; whereas, RF systems use

         13  radio frequencies, which are limited in range, and

         14  the GPS systems use control channels technology, as

         15  opposed to what Chief Anemone mistakingly stated, we

         16  don't use the cell channels, we use the control

         17  channels, which means there are never any busy

         18  signals and the signals do always get through. Most

         19  importantly, our units can never go out of range.

         20  Whether the cab driver is picking up a fare in the

         21  Bronx, driving to Atlantic City or the Hamptons,

         22  wherever he may be, that signal will always get back

         23  to the monitoring center and to the appropriate law

         24  enforcement agency.

         25                 So, whether it is the NYPD that is
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          2  responding, the Nassau County PD, wherever that

          3  agency is, that signal will get through.

          4                 In our meetings with the NYPD,

          5  somehow there seems to have been a miscommunication,

          6  as far as what the purpose of this pilot program

          7  was.

          8                 The pilot program was coordinated

          9  through the Office of Management Analysis and

         10  Planning, number one, to determine the effectiveness

         11  in the coverage areas of these GPS systems, and also

         12  to determine if it would affect the call volume to

         13  the 911 centers.

         14                 Our system is designed not to require

         15  any modification of the existing 911 system, so that

         16  any emergency can be piped in directly to their 911

         17  dispatch operation center without any modification.

         18                 Also, the fact that these systems

         19  were able to operate throughout the entire New York

         20  City area, including the downtown financial

         21  district, whether it is a so-called canyon effect,

         22  there were no dead spots.

         23                 Our report, which was submitted to

         24  the NYPD and to the Taxi and Limousine Commission,

         25  indicated that there were absolutely no dead spots.
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          2  Every single signal which was transmitted was

          3  received by our monitoring center, and to the NYPD

          4  observers that were riding with the test vehicle on

          5  the day of the test.

          6                 That information is available, it

          7  will be provided to you. Every single transmitted

          8  location was transmitted without any dead spots.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, I think we

         10  have one question for you.

         11                 Council Member Freed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes, I am just

         13  curious, because you know that we had the problem

         14  where the buses, there was supposed to be a pilot

         15  program with tracking the buses through the canyons,

         16  as you put it, in Manhattan; how is it you didn't

         17  have problems and they did?

         18                 MR. RIBACOFF: Okay, I believe time is

         19  of the essence and when that happened and when this

         20  happens, technology has improved.

         21                 The actual physics of it I can't

         22  directly explain, however, I will do my best.

         23                 In New York City there is what we

         24  call the "urban canyon effect" where tall buildings

         25  may block the signals from one or more satellites.
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          2                 In order for GPS to operate

          3  effectively you need to have a lock on a minimum of

          4  three satellites. The Security Track system utilizes

          5  a combination of amplifiers within the antenna

          6  systems which can pick up the weakest signals, and

          7  algorithms, which if a location is temporarily lost,

          8  that location is stored in memory so two satellites

          9  will function and one third one will be left in

         10  memory.

         11                 Immediately upon arriving at an

         12  intersection, where the sky is visible, four sides

         13  are open, and the signal is regained, that is again

         14  refed into the computer system and GPS tracking

         15  system goes back to the accuracy of ten feet.

         16                 So, in the case of an urban canyon,

         17  you may encounter a loss of accuracy maybe of 25, 50

         18  percent, so your accuracy is no longer ten feet, it

         19  may be 50 feet or 25 feet from the stated location.

         20                 However, to spot a livery vehicle

         21  within 50 feet is no problem for a police cruiser.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: What happens

         23  when if an incident happens you are in one of those

         24  algorithms?

         25                 MR. RIBACOFF: I don't understand what
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          2  you mean by an incident? Computer failure?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

          4                 MR. RIBACOFF: Every electronic device

          5  is subject to some sort of computer failure. In all

          6  the testing that we have done, including the 45-day

          7  period, we have not had one single failure of the

          8  system.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And then one

         10  last question. A number of the livery cabs already

         11  have GPS systems, can you hook into those?

         12                 MR. RIBACOFF: Any existing system can

         13  be modified with the antenna systems and software

         14  should be upgradeable.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. And your

         16  cost is roughly?

         17                 MR. RIBACOFF: The first year cost

         18  would run roughly $690, then about $20 per month to

         19  monitor this system. Very similar in expense to

         20  monitoring the home alarm system, very similar in

         21  operation to what banks presently have where they

         22  have partitions, they have cameras and they have

         23  silent hold-up alarms against hold-ups.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 MR. RIBACOFF: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 John Hynes.

          6                 MR. HYNES: Hello. My name is John

          7  Hynes. For the last year I have gone around and I

          8  found the widows of the drivers who were killed on

          9  the job, and I found that out of about 30 families

         10  that I encountered, perhaps two of them were aware

         11  that they get Worker's Compensation benefits.

         12                 That's not the principle issue

         13  though. Talking about safety today, what I would

         14  like to see is that there are no more widows. I am

         15  sure everybody in this room would like that.

         16                 I drove a yellow cab back in '78 and

         17  I made a right turn down a street in Brooklyn. I saw

         18  a sign that said "dead end street". I was really

         19  shocked. A man was behind me in a seat, and the

         20  Police Department at that time had a very

         21  interesting crime prevention program, and the place

         22  was called a "stake-out," there was a cop sitting

         23  right on the corner, I looked in the mirror and five

         24  seconds later the cop was right behind me on the

         25  dead-end street, he probably saved my life.
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          2                 I said thank you. I don't know what

          3  his name was, but thank you, again, if he is still

          4  around. I respect the police who do that kind of

          5  work, that is what it is all about.

          6                 The GPS, if it is the thing with the

          7  button that you kick with your foot on the seat, I

          8  drove a cab in '78 that had that, it was a good

          9  system. I don't know if it should be mandated or

         10  not, but I just think good old police work and

         11  common sense is the way to prevent the murders.

         12                 I don't know what to make of the

         13  issue, whether or not a driver should pick up in the

         14  street. It is true that the yellows do not make any

         15  effort to pick up in the boroughs. I did a long time

         16  ago, but it is not the same as it was 20 years ago.

         17  Of course you put your life in danger, and the

         18  people need cabs in the outer boroughs. None of this

         19  is going to be solved in five days.

         20                 There was one thing the TLC chair

         21  stated which I would like to put what I believe on

         22  the record. She said the undocumented may not apply

         23  for crime benefits and Worker's Compensation

         24  benefits. I was going to say that is absolutely not

         25  true, and I would encourage that anybody's family,
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          2  where someone gets killed on the job, should apply

          3  for these benefits.

          4                 I think also TLC was talking about

          5  how hard it is to get drivers, I am not surprised,

          6  it is a very dangerous job. I really think the

          7  drivers deserve a lot more respect than they get.

          8  Yellow drivers and livery drivers, it is not an

          9  issue about who is yellow and who is afraid to pick

         10  up in one neighborhood. When they get shot they all

         11  bleed red. I have been threatened with death several

         12  times, if they are still driving a cab, and it is

         13  going to happen.

         14                 I appreciate your efforts, and as the

         15  TLC said, if one life is saved by putting those

         16  partitions in, then it was worth it. I can't ride in

         17  cabs with partitions because I go into them, I have

         18  a wheelchair and I have no room to stretch my legs.

         19  The Lincoln Town cars, now they got partitions too,

         20  so that's the way it goes, you know? They got

         21  cameras. A lot of good work is being done, I just

         22  hope that more lives get saved.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Fernando Mateo, please.

          3                 MR. MATEO: For the record, the name

          4  is Fernando Mateo.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And you on the

          6  right side, can you identify yourself?

          7                 MR. SANTANA: My name is Hector

          8  Santana, a Vice President in the Federation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         10                 Can you identify yourself again?

         11                 MR. MATEO: Fernando Mateo, from New

         12  York State Federation of Taxi Drivers.

         13                 MR. LAUDI: Jose Laudi (phonetic),

         14  General Secretary for the New York State Federation

         15  of Taxi Drivers.

         16                 MR. MATEO: Good morning, ladies and

         17  gentlemen, colleagues and distinguished Council

         18  members. I would also like to recognize the

         19  survivors of livery drivers killed last year who are

         20  here with us today.

         21                 The New York State Federation of Taxi

         22  Drivers comes before you today to discuss a topic of

         23  great importance, an issue that for the last ten

         24  years, as long as you have been in office, Mr. Dear,

         25  has permeated the fiber of the communities in this
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          2  City.

          3                 Unfortunately, death has the effect

          4  of making us realize harsh realities, and that we

          5  are here today trying to find a way to protect a

          6  sector of our citizenry from senseless acts of

          7  murder.

          8                 Those murders are harsh realities of

          9  today, of our lives today. No one can escape that

         10  reality. We cannot escape the responsibility that

         11  the 243 livery cab drivers that were murdered while

         12  you were Chair of the Transportation Committee, is

         13  something that we need to seriously look into.

         14                 Four days ago Goderve Lalle

         15  (phonetic). Was making a living as a livery cab

         16  driver. Today he is dead. Mr. Lalle, a 56-year-old

         17  Indian immigrant, with three children, a wife, was

         18  working to sustain his family. Mr. Lalle's senseless

         19  murder brought back memories of last year's homicide

         20  frenzy in which 11 drivers were killed and many

         21  lives destroyed.

         22                 Twenty-four hours after Mr. Lalle was

         23  shot to death, another livery cab driver was

         24  murdered. Jose Gutierrez, a 23-year-old John Jay

         25  College student was killed, while working in the
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          2  Bronx. Jose shared his car in shifts with his

          3  stepfather, who is also a livery cab driver, in

          4  order to pay for his college tuitions.

          5                 Today Jose is gone, and no one in the

          6  City should ignore that reality.

          7                 Mr. Lalle was a man struggling to

          8  survive in his reality while Jose was a student

          9  struggling to make his reality.

         10                 The reality for us is that we are

         11  here to do whatever else is necessary, whatever else

         12  is necessary, to prevent deaths from occurring in

         13  this industry.

         14                 The City of New York has an interest

         15  in preventing deaths. After all, that is what

         16  government is charged with doing, shrinking the

         17  responsibility. Today will only allow an epidemic to

         18  continue.

         19                 This is a very real problem, and as

         20  problem solvers you are charged -- you are supposed

         21  to change and solve these problems. The Mayor

         22  committed funds last year to combat problems. The

         23  Mayor did.

         24                 Now we ask the Council to distinguish

         25  its efforts to curb the homicide, which plague our
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          2  industry.

          3                 Yes, we are asking you to take public

          4  dollars - I repeat, to take public dollars to fund

          5  the safety of livery drivers. And, yes, we are

          6  asking you to commit this City to something that it

          7  has done before. It has done it before.

          8                 The subsidy of industry is not a new

          9  concept in this City. All one needs to do is look to

         10  the real estate industry, the shipping industry, and

         11  to realize how much money we spend on tax subsidies,

         12  tax reliefs, waivers, exceptions, and any assortment

         13  of breaks that you give to private industry. This

         14  industry needs relief and it needs it now.

         15                 Take some of those dollars collected

         16  in fees from livery drivers, and reinvest it in

         17  their safety. Protect them from this tremendous

         18  epidemic of homicides that will continue, if not

         19  curve, by your action here today.

         20                 Send a message to this City and to

         21  the families that you will take action to protect

         22  your citizens.

         23                 Do not destroy the memory of those

         24  who have died over the years.

         25                 OSHA provides funds for disasters and
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          2  epidemics, and they claim in the report that they

          3  put out, it says, saying that the number of assaults

          4  and homicides against taxi drivers now borders on

          5  epidemic, Secretary of Labor Alexis Herman today

          6  released guidelines for safety measures that could

          7  protect drivers. The top of their list is a tracking

          8  device.

          9                 It is important, we believe, as an

         10  industry, that you Council Members understand that

         11  livery cabs provide a very crucial service to the

         12  City. I am not going to speak about Operation

         13  Greenzone because I don't think that is what we are

         14  here about, but that is a whole other issue and it

         15  is a whole new day. It will happen but another day.

         16                 Today we are here to discuss how we

         17  better protect these drivers, and how we give them

         18  the opportunity at the moment of truth, at the

         19  moment that a passenger enters their car, and pulls

         20  out a gun or pulls out a knife and tells them turn

         21  here and turn there and go straight and get on the

         22  highway, it would be very, very necessary for them

         23  to have some kind of equipment.

         24                 I don't appreciate you chatting while

         25  I am talking. I think that is very rude. You can
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          2  just tell me to shut up and I will shut up and then

          3  you can continue your conversation.

          4                 I would appreciate very much, Mr.

          5  Dear, if you gave these livery cab drivers and their

          6  family the opportunity to signal police when they

          7  are in danger. You never know who you are picking

          8  up, whether it is a radio call or whether it is a

          9  street hail, the truth of the matter is that you

         10  have a stranger in your car. They don't have the

         11  luxuries that yellow cabs have, of working Midtown

         12  Manhattan and working the airports. They work the

         13  inner-cities, areas that are crime-riddled, areas

         14  that are sometimes burnt down, streets that have no

         15  buildings, areas that are just where basic poor

         16  people live, and these poor people need and deserve

         17  transportation, just like every other New Yorker

         18  deserves transportation. But the transportation we

         19  provide and we want to provide should also be

         20  transportation that will protect the drivers.

         21                 Sure, we didn't have a murder in 12

         22  months. Partitions certainly help, the cameras

         23  certainly help, but the truth of the matter is that

         24  we have 60 to 70, 80 to 100 armed robberies and

         25  assaults every month, and that number is still very
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          2  high.

          3                 I am surprised that we are here

          4  today, but then again I am not surprised. This bill

          5  that was introduced by Councilwoman Quinn and

          6  Councilman Carrion was introduced months ago, last

          7  fall, or maybe late summer. We were enjoying the

          8  fact that no drivers had been killed, but for every

          9  month that went by I made a call to your office and

         10  I asked you and I begged you to please make sure

         11  that the hearings would come forth, because we

         12  wanted to make sure that we protected this industry,

         13  and you totally ignored my calls and you ignored my

         14  pleas to your office and to your staff to please

         15  bring this to the floor.

         16                 Of course now, like every other time,

         17  you react when there is a problem, but you do

         18  nothing to be proactive to avoid the problem.

         19                 We elect you and put you into office

         20  so that you can do a job for the people in the City

         21  of New York and to return phone calls, and the truth

         22  of the matter is that we are here today because of

         23  two murders that occurred in less than 24 hours.

         24                 I wasn't surprised that this hearing

         25  was going to go on today, and I am not surprised

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            117

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that you left me for last, knowing that I had signed

          3  that sheet before a few of the speakers that were

          4  here. But then again, that doesn't scare us, Mr.

          5  Dear. That doesn't intimidate us at all.

          6                 We want you to know that we care for

          7  these drivers, and we want you to care just as much

          8  as we do, because we transport two to three million

          9  people a day, and I believe those people deserve the

         10  respect of this City Council.

         11                 It is also mind-boggling that in a

         12  Transportation Committee with such an important

         13  issue here today, there are four Council members.

         14  That is an insult to the families of the murdered

         15  drivers.

         16                 We are here, and from here we go to

         17  the morgue to pick up a body to deliver it to the

         18  funeral parlor. You having us wait here two and a

         19  half hours, now two to two and a half hours,

         20  waiting, is also wrong, because you know that I was

         21  here to speak on their behalf and on behalf of all

         22  of our industry. And to speak about Operation

         23  Greenzone, I don't know, and I don't understand why

         24  you even permitted that issue to sit on the table

         25  today. That's a whole other issue, and it is an
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          2  issue that we will be rallying for and making sure

          3  that our people in our communities have the same

          4  right as people that live in affluent communities.

          5                 And with that, Mr. Dear, I think that

          6  I am willing and able to answer any of the questions

          7  that you may have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          9  much. There are no questions. I have no questions.

         10  Thank you very much.

         11                 MR. MATEO: Thank you, sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I would like to,

         13  before we conclude the hearing, I am not going to

         14  respond to the personal attacks on the Council and

         15  this body, because we have done so much as a group.

         16  I am disappointed that some people have decided to

         17  make this a personal issue on their own --

         18                 MR. MATEO: My name is Fernando Mateo,

         19  sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I did not disrupt

         21  you, so if you want to move on. And that is exactly

         22  what this is all about, and I hope that the media

         23  will be more responsive. If you want to run after

         24  him and respond to him, because here is someone who

         25  has come here, who has never been in this industry
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          2  and everybody is afraid to ask the question, and I

          3  will say it straight out. This man has not been seen

          4  or heard of in the last ten years as I am Chairman

          5  of this Committee, except in the last year in the

          6  City Council that he emerged, a problem emerged, so

          7  he can go forward and become a demagogue, become

          8  someone who has nothing to do with this industry. He

          9  does not have a license, never drove a cab, he

         10  doesn't live in the City of New York. So, I am not

         11  afraid to say it, while others are afraid to say

         12  what they are thinking in their minds. And I can

         13  tell you this much, there is an industry out there,

         14  these are hard-working people trying to earn an

         15  honest living, and we will continue to work with

         16  those groups of people that have worked all these

         17  years, that have been here, talked to us, sometimes

         18  we agree, sometimes we disagree, they have invested

         19  their money, their lives, to transport the people in

         20  the City of New York. I will not allow one

         21  individual to railroad an issue and to take

         22  advantage because he feels he can get onto TV every

         23  time there is someone who gets murdered, someone who

         24  gets hurt he is there. What is amazing to me is he

         25  gets there sometimes before the cops get there, and
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          2  I want to know who is tipping him off, and what is

          3  that all about? And what is he doing? And what has

          4  he done for the driver? Has he invested money for

          5  the drivers? Has he given money for the drivers? Has

          6  he helped those families? And to tell us and to

          7  berate us like this is unfair.

          8                 So, I hope that the responsible

          9  journalists will start taking a hard look, and stop

         10  to think about the hard-working people, and those

         11  people who have been hurt, those people who have

         12  been murdered, about those families, not immediately

         13  when the television lights are on and the cameras

         14  are rolling, I am talking about afterwards what do

         15  we do to help those families.

         16                 What Council Member Lopez wants to do

         17  is to help those families who have been victims, not

         18  immediately to do a press conference, but later on

         19  when they have to raise their kids and put them

         20  through college, where is the money coming from to

         21  help these families? That is what we are here for.

         22                 And to talk about protection, for 11

         23  months now there hasn't been one murder, one crime,

         24  because they installed the partitions and the

         25  cameras, which, again, was monies that was allocated
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          2  by the City Council with the Mayor of the City of

          3  New York, and I can tell you that if people would

          4  only follow those mandates and make sure that their

          5  partitions are closed, we wouldn't see any more

          6  murders and homicides.

          7                 So, I obviously have to respond,

          8  because I can't just let someone come here and talk

          9  and to respond to some of his accusations, I am not

         10  going to get into everything, but, for example,

         11  talking about Mr. Mateo, he first showed up at 1:15

         12  when our meeting was called for 12:00. In fact, he

         13  called for a press conference for 12:15 and never

         14  showed up there. I mean, every time he comes here he

         15  has an excuse that he has to get ahead of all the

         16  witnesses because he wants to make sure the cameras

         17  are still rolling and the cameras are here to take

         18  down his comments. I guarantee if you walked out

         19  before he had to testify, he would find an excuse to

         20  leave as well. Enough is enough, let's stop this

         21  nonsense. Let's stop this grandstanding. We are

         22  talking about people's lives, I am not taking

         23  advantage of people's lives, I am not taking

         24  advantage of drivers who work so hard for us, to

         25  transport us from one place to another, we know
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          2  there are some problems and some of the problems

          3  that we have out there are people are picking up

          4  illegal pick-ups, illegal hails, and we know what

          5  illegal hails are all about. These are people who

          6  are bent on doing some criminal activity.

          7                 Do you think a criminal is going to

          8  make a phone call to a base station and say pick me

          9  up now because I want to commit a crime? They know

         10  they can be identified. There are reasons about

         11  illegal hails, there is reasons for it, the safety

         12  and security, we also know this is another way of

         13  protecting the drivers. We also know that if the

         14  partitions are used, they do protect the drivers. I

         15  am open to everything. I know that I spoke to my

         16  colleagues, Council Member Linares, Council Member

         17  Quinn and others, and I have committed to this. I

         18  will meet as long as it takes. I am going to meet

         19  with the people who are driving. I am not going to

         20  meet with the people who think they can grandstand

         21  and take advantage of a few innocent people who feel

         22  that someone is listening to their cause. I am

         23  listening to everybody's cause. Even those who are

         24  doing the illegal pick-ups, we will listen to you as

         25  well because you are a driver, and we will help you
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          2  understand what it means, what a illegal pick-up

          3  means, what this is all about. We are going to try

          4  to address all those issues.

          5                 I know that the Council Members have

          6  approached me and I will continue to meet with them

          7  and I will continue. This is an ongoing meeting and

          8  I will continue this, but one thing I will not

          9  accept, grandstanding and personal attacks against

         10  this Council, who has done so much, so much for the

         11  riding public and so much to protect the drivers,

         12  all aspects of the industry, because this is a big

         13  industry. As you heard the Commissioner say, there

         14  are 48,000 licensed livery drivers out there, that's

         15  a lot of people, and I will continue to try to work

         16  with all of them, to bring them together to see what

         17  we can do to protect them. This Council is committed

         18  to safety and utmost to protect the drivers that are

         19  doing a yeoman's mob in the City of New York.

         20                 Thank you very much. This meeting is

         21  adjourned.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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